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Document 1
s47F
From: s47F
Sent: Wednesday, 15 February 2017 11:04 AM
To: S47F
Cc: S47F
Subject: RE: Possible Compliance Action [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Hi S47F

| believe the only active compliance case we have for impacts to Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands relates to herbicide application to
approximately 30 Hectares of the ecological community near Delegate in southern NSW. Below is talking points that | believe went to the Minister’s Office about the
matter. It would be good to find out who is asking and why.

Corrowong/Delegate land clearing

e The Department is investigating an allegation that about 30 hectares of the nationally listed critically endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the
South Eastern Highlands ecological community has been cleared in the Corrowong region of Southern NSW.

e As this matter is ongoing it would be inappropriate to comment further.

s47F from the Ecological Communities Section may be able to assist with the query about the revision to the listing.

Cheers,

S4TF

s47F

Al/g Compliance Manager

Compliance Section

Environment Standards Division
Department of the Environment and Energy

GPO Box 787 CANBERRA, ACT 2601
S47F

From:s47F
Sent: Wednesday, 15 February 2017 10:38 AM
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To: S47F
Subject: Possible Compliance Action [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

H| S4TF

Please find below a copy of the note | have been provided. This was recorded by a colleague from a phone call with the minister’s office so | apologise for the detail.
‘Possible compliance action
South East Highland Grassland

- Hunt made a change (listing status priority)
- What was change, when, why, implications

ACT/NSW Border’

S47F  and | have assumed this probably refers to Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands. | am not 100% on what we actually need to provide in
response to this but if you are able to provide any info on compliance actions occurring that relate to this community then that would be great.

Regards,

S4TF

S47F

Assessment Officer
Southern NSW & ACT Assessments
Environment Standards Division

Department of the Environment and Energy
S4TF
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Document 2
s47F
From: s47F
Sent: Thursday, 16 February 2017 10:35 AM
To: Collins, Monica
Cc: S47F
Subject: FW: Clearing of Grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Monica

General Information on listing of Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands

¢ Natural Temperate Grasslands in the ACT and Southern Tablelands, with core areas around Canberra and Cooma, have been protected under the Environment
Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 since the Act was introduced in 2000.

e The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community was listed in the Critically Endangered category on 6 April 2016.

e Between 16 July 2000 and 5 April 2016, the extent of this ecological community was included with the listed endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the
Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory ecological community.

¢ The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community came about as a result of a review of the Natural temperate grassland of
the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory (listed as endangered in 2000). This review was conducted to take account of new information,
and to recognise a broader distribution than was acknowledged in the original listing.

General Information on current investigation

¢ The Department is investigating relating to clearing of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community in the Corrowong
region of Southern NSW.

¢ The Department has undertaken inspections on the property. Expert advice indicates that up to 30ha of the protected ecological community has been impacted.

s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)

Parliament Hansard Search
| can only find two references to land clearing in the recent Hansard for the Senate and House (7-15 Feb)

Senator ROBERTS (Queensland) South-West Queensland Tuesday, 7 February 2017 pp 99 Hansard
“. .. property rights are fundamental, and the destruction of property rights is allied to red tape, green tape and blue tape, which are choking the farmers in our state. . . . Sheep
graziers . ... cannot comply with the tree clearing guidelines, which are senseless.
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http://parlinfo.aph.gov.au/parlinfo/download/chamber/hansards/272a29a0-c557-4988-bch8-
227d6f4fffc8/toc pdf/Senate 2017 02 07 4668.pdf;fileType=application%2Fpdf#tsearch=%22chamber/hansards/272a29a0-c557-4988-bch8-227d6f4fffc8/0000%22

Senator RHIANNON (New South Wales) Environmental Conservation 7 February 2017 pp 108

The amount of land in New South Wales being cleared for crops and pasture is accelerating, . . . . indicating that land-clearing regulations were not enforced. . . .. legislation land
clearing will certainly escalate further, leading to an increased loss of biodiversity and serious negative impacts on the climate.

land-clearing rules has the shameful record of having the highest rate of species extinctions in the world . . .etc
http://parlinfo.aph.gov.au/parlinfo/download/chamber/hansards/272a29a0-c557-4988-bch8-

227d6fAfffc8/toc pdf/Senate 2017 02 07 4668.pdf;fileType=application%2Fpdfttsearch=%22chamber/hansards/272a29a0-c557-4988-bcb8-
227d6f4fffc8/0000%22

s47F | Assistant Director |
Compliance
Environment Standards Division |

Department of Environment and Energy
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601

s4/F
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Document 3
SATF
From: s47F
Sent: Thursday, 16 February 2017 4:02 PM
To: Collins, Monica
Cc: CEBWorkflow; S47F
Subject: s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)
Monica

As requested some talking points below for your information prepared by 5%

s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)

General Information on listing of Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands

The native grasslands in the Southern Tablelands region of NSW and the ACT have been listed as a threatened ecological community since the start of the EPBC Act
(16 July 2000), and before that under the Commonwealth Endangered Species Protection Act 1992.

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community was listed on 6 April 2016 as a result of a review of the original listing,
which was known as Natural temperate grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory. This review was conducted to take
account of new information, in line with the 2006 National Recovery Plan for this ecological community.

The revised listing added a ‘minimum condition threshold’, which identifies which areas of grassland are protected by the EPBC Act. Low quality grasslands that do
not meet this threshold are not protected, whereas some of these areas would have been included in the previous listing.

The process which led to the 2016 listing included public consultation. The Department sent notifications to a wide range of stakeholders to make them aware of
the consultation process, including all relevant Councils, Local Land Services and other State Agencies, the National Farmers’ Federation and NSW Farmers’
Association. A farmer specific consultation guide was available as part of the consultation package.

Following the listing on 6 April 2016, notification emails were sent to stakeholders, and information guides developed with the assistance of the National Farmers’
Federation were distributed to all Councils and Local Land Services Offices where the ecological community occurs.

General Information on current investigation

The Department is investigating relating to clearing of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community in the Corrowong
region of Southern NSW.

The Department received an allegation that up to 200 hectares of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community had been
impacted at a property at Corrowong in late 2016.

The Department has undertaken inspections on the property. Expert advice indicates that up to 30ha of the protected ecological community has been impacted.


a25877
Text Box
IR 191003
Document 3


s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)

s47F
Compliance

Environment Standards Division |

Department of Environment and Energy
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601

s4/F

| A/g Director |
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Document 4
s47F
From: s47F
Sent: Thursday, 16 February 2017 2:52 PM
To: S47F
Cc: s47F Richardson, Geoff
Subject: RE: Urgent request for talking points - NTGSEH listing [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Attachments: Letter submission - NSW OEH - 150724.pdf; Public consultation material - consulation guide.docx
His47F

See below for background and talking points. There’s probably a bit more detail in here than required, but I've put it all together for a complete picture.
For context, I've included reference to the Corrowong compliance case, as we assume this query is related to that investigation.

Regards,
S47F

SATE | Project Officer | Ecological Communities Section | Protected Species and Communities Branch
Department of the Environment and Energy
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601 | S47F

(For more about threatened ecological communities and our latest newsletter, see:
http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/communities.html)

Previous listing and the revised listing

e The native grasslands in the Southern Tablelands region of NSW and the ACT have been listed as a threatened ecological community since the start of the EPBC Act (16
July 2000), and before that under the Commonwealth Endangered Species Protection Act 1992.
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The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community was listed on 6 April 2016 as a result of a review of the original listing, which
was known as Natural temperate grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory. This review was conducted to take account of new
information, in line with the 2006 National Recovery Plan for this ecological community.

The revised listing added a ‘minimum condition threshold’, which identifies which areas of grassland are protected by the EPBC Act. Low quality grasslands that do not
meet this threshold are not protected, whereas some of these areas would have been included in the previous listing.

s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)

Consultation

The original listing, recovery plan and revised listing all went through statutory consultation processes.

Notification of public consultation on the review of the ecological community listing

Notification emails were sent to a wide range of stakeholders, including all councils, Local Land Services, and state agencies where the ecological community occurs,
and the National Farmers’ Federation and NSW Farmers’ Association (Adair Moar, Policy Director; and, Danica Leys, Policy Director — Environment). These Farmers’
groups were contacted by the Department’s Environment Liaison Officer, out posted to the NFF, and the Department met with the NFF to discuss the listing on more
than one occasion.

Reminder emails were also sent to the same groups as the end of the public consultation period approached.

A farmer specific consultation guide (attached) was available as part of the consultation package, explaining the listing review process and what this meant for farming
activities.

Notification of the listing event (6 April 2016)

Following listing, email notifications were also sent.

Information guide on the ecological community for landholders

An information guide was finalised and released in 2016. This was developed with the assistance of the NFF.

The information guide is designed to assist land managers, owners and occupiers as well as environmental assessment officers and consultants to identify, assess and
manage the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community. This guide also explains why the listing was revised and relationships
between the previous and updated listing.

Hardcopies of the information guide (including a link to the electronic version on the website) were sent to all councils and South East Local Land Service offices where
the ecological community occurs. For the Corrowong/Delegate region, this included the Snowy-Monaro Regional Council office in Cooma, and the South East LLS office



in Bombala. The letter that accompanied these guides invited the offices to “Please pass this letter and the enclosed brochures on to relevant environment or
biodiversity officers, and/or your organisation’s reception/visitors area”.

The information guide explains that, “Only activities that are likely to have a significant impact on the ecological community need to be considered under national
environment law—activities such as large new developments, works or infrastructure. For example, permanently clearing areas of high-quality native vegetation for

mining and energy infrastructure, changed agricultural production (e.g. cropping), telecommunication cabling, roadworks or residential/industrial subdivision.”

Awareness of Natural Temperate Grassland listing

The national Recovery Plan included work to increase awareness of the ecological community, including the establishment of the Southern Tablelands Conservation
Management Network and work in the early-mid 2000s by WWF.

The attached letter from NSW OEH also summarises work they have done to increase community engagement with the listed ecological community (see pages 4-5) and
working collaboratively with partners (page 7).

South East Local Land Services acknowledge the National Landcare Programme and EPBC Act in their 2016-21 strategic plan.

South East Local Land Services has received money through the National Landcare Programme to administer grants to restore the NTG EC, among other projects.

From:S47F

Sent: Thursday, 16 February 2017 9:35 AM
To: S47F

Cc: S47F
Subject: Urgent request for talking points - NTGSEH listing [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

His47F

As discussed, it appears that a NTGSEH case was discussed in parliament yesterday, and we have been asked to urgently draft some dot points about the listing. Can you
please provide a point about the amount of engagement, consultation and education (particularly with the farming community) that was undertaken in the listing process.

This is a handwritten note we got from a phone call with the Minister’s office:

‘Possible compliance action
South East Highland Grassland

- Hunt made a change (listing status priority)
- What was change, when, why, implications



ACT/NSW Border’

Draft dot points:

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

¢ Dot point about consultation, engagement and education

Happy to discuss,

S4TF

Senior Compliance Officer

Compliance Section

Environment Standards Division
Department of the Environment and Energy

GPO Box 787 CANBERRA, ACT 2601
SATF
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Page 2

require further information, please don't hesitate to contact me orS47F or email me on

s47F Please note that | will be retiring from OEH on 28 August 2015,
so after that date please refer correspondence to my manager, S47F at

s47F

Yours sincerelv

s4/F

Senior Threatened Species Officer,
Ecosystems and Threatened Species,
South East Regional Operations
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ATTACHMENT 1 — OEH activities on the conservation of the EPBC-listed Natural Temperate
Grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory

1.

[~

Survey of NTG and its component species. Survey work has included a comprehensive coverage of
the South Eastern Highlands Bioregion, identifying sites with NTG and those containing the
grassland plants, reptiles, birds and invertebrates that this endangered ecological community
supports. Over the last 20 years, our team, and people associated with it in some way (e.g.,
environmental consultants and project officers engaged by the Natural Temperate Grassland
National Recovery Team), have identified in excess of 900 sites containing NTG across the South
Eastern Highland IBRA Bioregion, with sites being defined as discrete areas of NTG not connected
to another, or if adjacent, then containing either a different vegetation type, or a different condition
state. Sites range in size from small roadside reserves to large paddocks on freeholdings. Early
work on survey of NTG sites was carried out with Australian Government funding.

NTG sites have been identified from the following land tenure types:
o Private land holdings, including hobby farms and production landscapes;
Crown land and council reserves including cemeteries;
Roadside and rail easement reserves;
Travelling stock reserves and routes;
Sites identified through development assessment processes; and
Sites identified for offsets through the environmental planning processes of development
projects, including BioBanking sites (see below).

O O O O O

Threatened plant species that have specifically been surveyed for, or that have had locations
identified incidentally, mostly by OEH staff and consultants either under contract to NSW OEH or
independents, include: ‘
o Mauve Burr-daisy (Calotis glandulosa);
Creeping Hopbush (Dodonaea procumbens),
Omeo Stork’s-bill (Pelargonium sp. (G.W. Carr 10345);
Tarengo Leek orchid (Prasophyllum petilum);
Summer Leek Orchid (Prasophyllum canaliculatum);
Button Wrinklewort (Rutidosis leptorrhynchoides);
Monaro Golden Daisy (Rutidosis leiolepis);
Austral Toadflax (Thesium australe);
Basalt Peppercress (Lepidium hyssopifolium); and
Small Purple-pea (Swainsona recta).

O O O 0O OO0 0O o0 o0

Threatened reptile species that have specifically been surveyed for or that have had locations
identified incidentally by OEH staff, consultants either under contract to OEH or independents, and
university researchers, include:

o Grassland Earless Dragon (Tympanocryptus pinguicolla);

o Striped Legless Lizard (Delma impar);

o Little Whip Snake (Suta flagellum); and

o Pink-tailed Worm-lizard (Aprasia parapulchella).

In addition, OEH has supported work that has uncovered additional locations for Golden Sun Moth
(Synemon plana).

Databasing, mapping, modelling and community classification of NTG. OEH, often in collaboration
with other groups, has developed products, including a grassy ecosystems database, remote-
sensing modelling, connectivity modelling and community classification, as follows:

a. The Grassy Ecosystems Database contains data from over 9000 grassland and grassy
woodland site datapoints (plots, regional surveys, site visits, site assessments, monitoring
sites, including baseline and follow-ups, recap visits, etc), from not only the South Eastern
Highlands Bioregion, but from across eastern NSW, as well as a number of NTG sites in
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Victoria. This dataset comprises location and attribute data, including vegetation
classification and condition information, and full flora species lists for most sites. The
database is currently being transferred to the NSW Vegetation Information System at:
http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/research/VISplot.htm;

b. Preparation of a pre-European natural grassland boundary map. This was created and first
published in Rehwinkel, R. (1997) Joint Regional Biodiversity Survey of Grassy Ecosystems
Project - Stage 1. New South Wales National Parks and Wildlife Report, and subsequently in
Planning Framework for Natural Ecosystems of the ACT and NSW Southern Tablelands
(Fallding, 2002) (at:
http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/biodiversity/FrameworkForEcosystems.pdf)
and in the NTG National Recovery Plan (at:
http://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/7c8a51fb-0436-450e-b895-
fb46bc1f7b39/files/temperate-grasslands.pdf);

c. Preparation of a multi-image, remotely-sensed spectral analysis model of grassy
ecosystems for the ACT and sub-region (ERIC (2001) Remote Sensing Detection of Native
Grasslands using Multi-lmage Spectral Analysis in the South Eastern Highlands of NSW.
Report prepared for the New South Wales National Parks and Wildlife Service). This was
commissioned by R. Rehwinkel (OEH). This work was undertaken with funding from the
Australian Government;

d. Preparation of a multi-image, remotely-sensed spectral analysis model of grassy
ecosystems for the Monaro region (Walter, K., & Schelling, K. (2004) Remote Sensing
Mapping of Grassy Ecosystems in the Monaro. Report to the New South Wales Department
of Environment and Conservation). This was funded by South East Local Land Services (SE
LLS) and commissioned by R. Rehwinkel (OEH);

e. Preparation of a multi-image, remotely-sensed spectral analysis model of grassy
ecosystems for the Upper Shoalhaven region (Walter, K., & Schelling, K. (2005) Remote
sensing mapping of grassy ecosystems in the upper catchment of the Shoalhaven River
(Southern Tablelands Region). Report to the New South Wales Department of Environment
and Conservation). This was funded by SE LLS and commissioned by R. Rehwinkel (OEH);

f. Preparation of a revision of the Monaro grassland model (Rehwinkel, R. (2005) Revision of
Monaro Grassland Mapping, NSW Dept. Environment and Conservation report prepared for
the Southern River Catchment Management Authority);

g. Data collection for, and analysis and publication of a grassland community classification
(Armstrong, R.C., Turner, K.D., McDougall, K.L., Rehwinkel, R., & Crooks, J.l. (2013) Plant
communities of the upper Murrumbidgee catchment in New South Wales and the Australian
Capital Territory, Cunninghamia 13(1): 125-265; see:
http://www.rbgsyd.nsw.gov.au/ data/assets/pdf file/0019/128521/Cun131arm125.pdf));
and

h. Preparation of parameters, data inputs and provision of technical assistance for connectivity
modelling for grassy ecosystems species (Love, J., Rehwinkel, R. and Moyle, K. (in prep)
Southern Rivers NRM Stream 1 Habitat and Connectivity Modelling Project - The mapping of
fauna habitat and connectivity values in the South East Local Land Services area).

3. Community engagement with a wide range of stakeholders. OEH has engaged with many different
types of stakeholders to engage the community about the conservation and management of NTG
EEC and its component threatened fauna and flora. This has included the following:

a. Development of the Southern Tablelands Grassy Ecosystems Conservation Management
Network (STGE CMN). A CMN is the network of remnants of native vegetation, their owners
or managers and other interested individuals, focussing on a single ecological community
because the management needs of each community are relatively uniform. An important
purpose of a CMN is to assist landholders and land managers in the management of
remnant native vegetation. The STGE CMN was established under Australian Government
funding, but is now in abeyance, though the website that was produced as part of this project
is still operational; see: http://www.gbwcmn.net.au/node/10. This work was undertaken with
funding from the Australian Government;
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b. Preparation and delivery of field days, courses, workshops, forums, conference

presentations, university lectures and tutorials, to communicate the values of NTG to
participants. Stakeholders that have participated have included

¢ Local Government agency staff;

¢ Local Land Service staff

« members of the Grassy Ecosystems CMN;

» Friends of Grasslands, Australian Network for Plant Conservation and other non-

government groups;

o NSW NPWS staff and their community network contacts;

¢ Landcare groups;

o K2C members and K2C partners;

e other community groups; and

¢ individuals, especially landholders with NTG on their properties.

The above events have covered topics, including

= field recognition of the vegetation communities comprising NTG;

training in the use of the Floristic Value Score method (see below);

grassland plant identification;

discussion of values, threats, conservation management and planning matters;
connectivity modelling;

remote-sensing modelling;

plant classification; and

fauna values.

4. Creation of reserves and the application of other conservation mechanisms. A number of NTG sites

have been identified and subsequently have had conservation mechanisms applied.

Sites with the highest level of formal protection include the following nature reserves, managed by
NSW National Parks and Wildlife Service, in order of acquisition:

a.

Turallo Nature Reserve near Bungendore, which has 25 ha of highly diverse NTG and one
threatened reptile species; see:
http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/planmanagement/final/TuralloNR. pdf;

Kuma Nature Reserve near Cooma, which has 120 ha of NTG and several threatened
reptile species; see: http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/parks/pomKumaNR.pdf;
An addition of a 60 ha area of NTG to Queanbeyan Nature Reserve (Queanbeyan), that
includes populations of several threatened grassland flora and fauna species; see
http://www.nationalparks.nsw.gov.au/visit-a-park/parks/Queanbeyan-Nature-Reserve;

An addition of a highly significant area of NTG to the South East Forests National Park near
Nimmitabel; see: http://www.nationalparks.nsw.gov.au/visit-a-park/parks/South-East-
Forests-National-Park; and

Mcleods Creek Nature Reserve near Gundaroo, which contains about 5 ha of NTG; see
http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/planmanagement/draft/110751GunningReser
vesDraftPOM. pdf.

In addition provision of advice to the Victorian Government from OEH contributed to the creation of
Bendoc Nature Conservation Reserve at Bendoc, Victoria, which contains a small sample of NTG;
see hitp://parkweb.vic.gov.au/ _data/assets/pdf file/0018/312192/21 1449.pdf.

Sites with the various lower levels of protection include the following sites, managed by various
agencies, in order of establishment:

f.

Gundaroo Common, a crown reserve with large areas of NTG and several threatened
species that has a management trust that has received OEH has assistance with
development of a conservation management plan;

Old Cooma Common, a council reserve with a large area of NTG and threatened flora that
was identified by OEH and has subsequently received assistance with NSW Environmental
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Trust funding and volunteers help from Friends of Grasslands to fence and remove weeds
from this site;

Days Hill, Bungendore, a council reserve with areas of NTG; NSW OEH and Australian
Government Department of Environment assisted Palerang Council in the development of
this council reserve;

‘Parlour’, Braidwood area, a private landholding with large areas of highly intact NTG that
was identified by OEH staff, subsequently purchased by the NSW Nature Conservation
Trust and ultimately on-sold with an in-perpetuity conservation covenant to private
landholders as an offset under EPBC processes as an offset for development on NTG on a
site near Canberra;

‘Bunhybee’, Braidwood area, a private landholding with large areas of highly intact NTG that
was identified by OEH staff, subsequently purchased by the NSW Nature Conservation
Trust and ultimately on-sold with an in-perpetuity conservation covenant to private
landholders; see: http://www.rogerclarke.com/Bunhybee/PropBrochure.html

‘Weeroona’ and ‘Lochlea’, Monaro region, are two large freehold properties that have been
set aside as NSW BioBanking offset sites following the development of the Boco Rock
Windfarm; NSW BioBanking sites have formal protection under in-perpetuity covenants; see:
http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/biobanking/;

‘Llanelly’, Michelago, a private landholding with large areas of NTG with threatened flora that
was identified by OEH staff, subsequently purchased by the NSW Nature Conservation
Trust and will ultimately be on-sold with an in-perpetuity conservation covenant to private
landholders;

‘Garruwanga’, near Nimmitabel, a private landholding with areas of NTG that was identified
by OEH staff, subsequently purchased by the NSW Nature Conservation Trust and will
ultimately be on-sold with an in-perpetuity conservation covenant to private landholders; and
Yass Gorge, Yass, a council reserve with outstanding scenic qualities and a rare sample of
a NTG grassland type that is confined to steep rocky sites. The site was identified by OEH
staff and is currently a subject of a Green Army team that is removing weeds. In a separate
project, collaboration between Yass Landcare, Yass Valley Council and K2C is developing a
community engagement project and developing a management plan, with NSW
Environmental Trust funding.

5. Working on the conservation management of NTG and its component species. OEH has

collaborated with its many partners to raise awareness of NTG and its component threatened
species. OEH has also collaborated to undertake on-ground works, as follows:

a.

b.

C.

Undertaking long-term research and conservation management of populations of Small
Purple-pea (Swainsona recta) at a railway easement near Williamsdale;
Undertaking conservation management and assisting CSIRO with long-term research on
populations of Button Wrinklewort (Rutidosis leptorrhynchoides) throughout the region;
Assisting the funding of fencing for protection of NTG and populations of Button Wrinklewort
(Rutidosis leptorrhynchoides) at Gundary TSR (Goulburn);
Undertaking long-term monitoring of NTG condition and monitoring and surveys for
threatened flora and/or reptiles at the following sites:

o Kuma Nature Reserve;

o Queanbeyan Nature Reserve; and

e Turallo Nature Reserve.
Undertaking translocation experiments with Aromatic Peppercress (Lepidium hyssopifolium),
trialling translocation to new localities from an existing population (in collaboration with
Friends of Grasslands and NSW NPWS);
Collecting bulk seeds of Aromatic Peppercress (Lepidium hyssopifolium) for lodgement in
seedbanks at Mt Annan Botanic Gardens and Australian National Botanic Gardens;
Contracting surveys and monitoring for Summer Leek Orchid (Prasophyllum canaliculatum),
at Packers Swamp near Nimmitabel, with funding from the NSW Saving Our Species
program;
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h. Contracting fencing and weed spraying at sites with populations of Omeo Stork’s-bill
(Pelargonium sp. (G.W. Carr 10345) at Lake Bathurst and Maffra Lake TSR near
Nimmitabel, with funding from the NSW Saving Our Species program;

i. Working with NSW NPWS rangers and field staff on the conservation management of NTG
at Kuma Nature Reserve, Queanbeyan Nature Reserve, Mcleods Creek Nature Reserve,
Turallo Nature Reserve and South Eastern Forests National Park, where we have
undertaken, or assisted with various trials, including weed control trials and biomass removal
trials (burning, slashing and grazing), all with associated monitoring.

6. Working collaboratively with partners. OEH has a track record of working in partnership with other
agencies in its efforts in the conservation of NTG. Partnerships have been developed with many
government and non-government agencies, including:

a. ACT Government staff, working particularly with its researchers and ranger staff on many
cross-border issues;

b. the Natural Temperate Grassland National recovery Team, alongside the ACT Government
and other government and NGO groups to develop the NTG National Recovery Plan and
cooperatively carry out its actions;

c. partners in the community, in particularly with private landholders, including farmers, who
have NTG on their properties;

d. South East Local Land Services (SE LLS and its predecessors, the Murrumbidgee and
Southern Rivers Catchment Management Authorities), particularly in strategic management
of NTG and assistance in developing planning documents and policy documents;

e. Kosciuszko to Coast (K2C). OEH has been a strong supporter of this landscape partnership
since its inception in 2007. K2C has included grasslands amongst its six landscape targets.
K2C has recently competed a three-year grassland project funded by the Myer Foundation.
The Myer Foundation project has:

¢ developed a new Building Understory Diversity website, in collaboration with
Greening Australia (yet to be formally launched);

» worked with many stakeholders in the region (including landholders, researchers,
Government staff and NGOs);

e commissioned the analysis of grassland management plot data (Josh Dorrough, in
prep), in collaboration with SE LLS;

» held a number of Grassland Symposia, both in Canberra and Melbourne, to foster
cross agency — cross border collaboration; and

« facilitated collaboration in the publication of a new publication on grassland
management: Williams, N. and Marshall. A. (eds) (2015) Land of Sweeping Plains -
Managing and Restoring the Native Grasslands of South-eastern Australia CSIRO
Publishing (see: http://www.publish.csiro.au/pid/7219.htm);

f. Local government agencies, many of which have developed positive outcomes for NTG sites
as a result of advice from OEH. Outstanding examples have been the collaboration with
Yass Valley LGA in its work at Yass Gorge and Palerang Council in its work on Days Hill
Reserve (see above);

g. Department of Primary Industries (Lands), particularly in our role of providing advice on the
management of NTG on Crown Land reserves including two large and important reserves
containing natural grassland:

¢ Lake Bathurst; and
* Rowes Lagoon;

h. Crown land trusts, particularly in our role of providing advice on the management of NTG on
Crown Land reserves, and in particular at Gundaroo Common (see above);

i. Managers of travelling stock reserves (currently LLS), particularly in our role of providing
advice on the management of NTG on travelling stock reserves, and particularly as a result
of work with the NTG National Recovery Team, the identification of sites that have
subsequently received Australian Government funding for management; and

j. NSW National Parks and Wildlife Service, particularly in our role of providing advice on the
management of NTG on their reserves (see above).
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7. Producing and collaborating on strategic documents. NSW OEH has developed, mostly in

consultation with other agencies or groups, a range of strategic documents that deal with the
conservation and management of NTG, including:

a.

b.

C.

Preparation, in collaboration with the ACT Government, of the initial nomination that resulted
in the listing of NTG as an EEC under the EPBC Act;
Collaboration with the ACT Government and Australian Government Department of
Environment staff on the recent update of the listing of NTG EEC (see more details, below);
Collaboration in the preparation of the NTG National Recovery Plan; see:
http://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/7c8a51fb-0436-450e-b895-
fb46bc1f7b39/files/temperate-grasslands.pdf;
Preparation of, or collaboration with others in the National Recovery Plans for a range of
NTG flora and fauna species, including:

e Creeping Hopbush (Dodonaea procumbens);

e Omeo Stork’s-bill (Pelargonium sp. (G.W. Carr 10345);

e Tarengo Leek orchid (Prasophyllum petilum);

e Button Wrinklewort (Rutidosis leptorrhynchoides);

¢ Monaro Golden Daisy (Rutidosis leiolepis)

e Small Purple-pea (Swainsona recta);

o Aromatic Peppercress (Lepidium hyssopifolium);

o Grassland Earless Dragon (Tympanocryptis pinguicolla);

e Striped Legless Lizard (Delma impar),

o Little Whip Snake (Suta flagellum);

¢ Pink-tailed Worm-lizard (Aprasia parapulchella); and

¢ Golden Sun Moth (Synemon plana).
Preparation of an information gap analysis to identify survey needs (Rehwinkel, R. (1997)
Joint Regional Biodiversity Survey of Grassy Ecosystems Project - Stage 1. New South
Wales National Parks and Wildlife Report);
Collaboration with a team that included ACT and NSW government and NGOs, including the
Housing Industry Association, which resulted in the preparation of The Planning Framework
for Natural Ecosystems of the ACT and NSW Southern Tablelands (Fallding, 2002); see:
http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/resources/biodiversity/FrameworkForEcosystems. pdf).
This work was undertaken with major funding from the Australian Government and included
development of remote-sensing modelling and regional threatened grassland reptile surveys
(see above);
Assistance with the preparation of a planning framework for Cooma-Monaro Shire;
Assistance with, and provision of data for, a range of local government strategic plans and
local environment plans; including for:

e Yass Valley LGA,

o Upper Lachlan LGA,;

¢ Goulburn-Mulwaree LGA;

e Palerang LGA;

¢ Queanbeyan City LGA;

e Cooma-Monaro LGA;

s Snowy River LGA; and

e Bombala LGA.
Routine checking by our planning team of environmental assessments undertaken by
consultants for developers and local government agencies (LGAs), where impacts have
affected NTG and its component species. These have resulted in correspondence with
proponents and LGA staff, and in many cases have involved field work with the above;
South East Local Land Services (SE LLS and its predecessors, the Murrumbidgee and
Southern Rivers Catchment Management Authorities), with OEH staff assisting in
development of their Catchment Action Plans and their reviews; SE LLS has the NTG EEC
amongst its landscape targets;
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k. Assistance in the preparation of the Kosciuszko to Coast (K2C) Conservation Action Plan,
and in particular, identifying NTG as one of the core targets for K2C to work on; see:
http://k2c.org.au/;

I.  Development of a robust, reliable and repeatable assessment methodology for the
identification of NTG values (Rehwinkel, 2007; Rehwinkel, in prep.) see:
http://www.gbwcmn.net.au/sites/default/files/GrasslandAssessmentMethod.pdf. This
method, known as the Floristic Value Score (FVS) Method, has been produced in
collaboration with many OEH staff, Australian Government Department of Environment staff
and external partners, including consultants and LLS staff. As the method is required both
for NSW processes and under the proposed Australian Government's EPBC Act NTG EEC
re-listing, strenuous efforts have been made to ensure that the FVS scores will be uniform
for use in both jurisdictions.

The FVS method was original developed for the Australian Government as an action
identified in the NTG National Recovery Plan (see:
http://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/7c8a51fb-0436-450e-b895-
fb46bc1f7b39/files/temperate-grasslands.pdf), and has now been widely accepted by
various groups; including:
o ACT Government staff, who use the method to assess grassland values and for
monitoring grassland sites;
e community groups, who have been using the method for monitoring; and
¢ consultants, who have been employing the method for use in development
applications for NSW processes;
» Greening Australia, who have used the method for assessment of grassland values
prior to grassland restoration works being carried out at the Canberra Airport, and for
subsequent monitoring.

The FVS method was formally presented at a workshop at an Australian Network for Plant
Conservation conference in Canberra in 2012, and following that, extensively reviewed by
NSW, ACT and Victorian grassland specialists. It has recently been proposed for adoption
under formal NSW policy processes in a review of environmental acts, and has recently
been subject to more extensive review by OEH and LLS staff. During these processes, the
method has been developed for use in other grassland regions throughout NSW, with tools
for the FVS method having been completed for two other NSW regions (Riverina and
Brigalow Belt South), and work commencing for an additional three regions (Cumberland
Plain, NSW South Western Slopes and Darling Riverine Plain).

m. Assistance in the development of OEH policies dealing with NTG, and provision of relevant
data for these processes; including:
 NSW BioMetric; see: http.//www.environment.nsw.gov.au/projects/BiometricTool.htm;
and
» NSW BioBanking; see: http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/biobanking/;
n. Development of profiles for the NTG EEC and its associated threatened species: see:
http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/threatenedspecies/; and
o. Development of Saving Our Species project plans for a select group of NTG-associated
threatened species: see http://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/threatenedspecies/.

8. Developing publications or collaborating in their development. OEH has collaborated on a number
of publications related to the identification, management and conservation of NTG, including books,
field guides, handbooks and brochures, the most important of which are listed below:

a. Grassland Flora — a field guide for the Southern Tablelands (NSW & ACT) (Eddy, D.,
Mallinson, D., Rehwinkel, R. and Sharp, S., 1998); see:
http://www.fog.org.au/grassland flora.htm:;

b. Managing native grassland: a guide to management for conservation production and
landscape protection (Eddy, 2002); see:
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http://www.wwf.org.au/news _resources/resource library/?1484/Managing-native-grassland-
a-guide-to-management-for-conservation-production-and-landscape-protection

Managing Native Pastures for Agriculture and Conservation (Langford, C.M., Simpson, P.C.,
Garden, D.L., Eddy, D.A,, Keys, M.J., Rehwinkel, R., and Johnston, W.H., 2004); see:
http://www.dpi.nsw.gov.au/agriculture/pastures/pastures-and-rangelands/native-
pastures/managing-native-pastures

Grassy Ecosystems Management Kit (Sharp, S., Dorrough, J., Rehwinkel, R., Eddy, D. &
Breckwoldt, A., 2005); see: http://www.gbwcmn.net.au/node/3532;

Understanding our Native Grasslands (Natural Resources Advisory Council, 2010); see:
http://www.landcareonline.com.au/?page id=4104; and

Land of Sweeping Plains - Managing and Restoring the Native Grasslands of South-eastern
Australia Williams, N. and Marshall. A. (eds) 2015, CSIRO Publishing); see:
http://www.publish.csiro.au/pid/7219.htm.
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Listing update for Natural Temperate
Grasslands of the Southern Tablelands

ecological community: consultation guide
April 2014

This information guide is intended to help the public understand why the
listing of the Natural Temperate Grasslands of the Southern Tablelands
ecological community is being reviewed, and what the updated listing would

achieve and mean for people in the region.

In summary:

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the
Southern Tablelands was listed as an
endangered ecological community in
2000, under Australia’s national
environment law, the Environment
Protection and Biodiversity Conservation
Act 1999 (EPBC Act).

The original southern tablelands listing
does not cover the full distribution of
these types of grasslands.

This review is updating the listing to
include the broader extent of these
grasslands across the South Eastern
Highlands, and immediately adjacent
areas.

A scientific assessment has been
undertaken to re-define the ecological
community and gather evidence on its
current threat status.

Public consultation and input from land
managers is an important and valuable
part of the assessment process.

Consultation is open until 30 May 2014.

The Minister for the Environment will
make the decision on whether to update
the listing by the end of 2014.

The grasslands listing has benefits for
the environment and associated
ecosystem services, and benefits and
opportunities for land managers.

The updated listing would continue to
help promote a co-ordinated,
ecosystem-scale approach to threat
abatement in the region and for many
threatened species that are found within
the ecological community.

Listing under the EPBC Act means that
an activity that is likely to have a
significant impact on the ecological
community needs to be referred to the
Commonwealth environment minister for
assessment and approval.

The updated listing will introduce
minimum condition thresholds, to help
identify patches where a referral may be
necessary.

Routine property maintenance and land
management practices carried out in line
with other laws and guidelines covering
native vegetation typically do not require
referral under national environment law.

The national environment law only
considers activities that are likely to
have a significant adverse impact on a
listed ecological community; activities
such as large new developments, works
or infrastructures. For example, activities
that involve permanently clearing large
areas of intact and high-quality native
vegetation for new residential and
industrial areas or energy infrastructure.
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What is an ecological community under national environmental
law?

Australia’s national environmental law, the EPBC Act, protects what are known as Matters of
National Environmental Significance. The Act is only triggered if there is likely to be a significant
impact to any of these matters.

Threatened species and ecological communities are Matters of National Environmental
Significance. The EPBC Act defines an ecological community as an assemblage of native species
that inhabits a particular area in nature. They often relate to types of native vegetation, such as a
certain kind of grassland, woodland or forest.

The native plants and animals within an ecological community have different roles and
relationships that, together, contribute to the healthy functioning of the environment. Protecting
native communities also protects ecosystem services such as good quality air and water; healthy
soils; natural prevention or control of erosion and salinity; shelter and feed for stock; and the
storage of carbon. These all contribute to better productivity of our land and water, which benefits
people and society.

Human settlements and infrastructures where an ecological community formerly occurred do not
form part of the natural environment and are therefore not part of the ecological community—e.g.
sites where an ecological community has been cleared or replaced by crops, exotic pastures or
developments. This also applies to sites where the ecological community exists in a highly-
degraded or unnatural state. For instance, cropping lands and exotic pastures or areas where
much of the native vegetation has been replaced by exotic species, and are no longer part of a
natural ecological community.

What is the listing assessment process?

The assessment by the independent Threatened Species Scientific Committee (the Committee)
involves clarifying the definition of the ecological community, determining where it occurs, and
rigorously assessing its eligibility for listing as nationally threatened. An ecological community must
be demonstrated to be significantly impacted by identified threats. It should also be shown that if
these threats are not managed, there is a risk that the ecological community may be changed
irreversibly and its natural composition and/or function could be lost forever. Three categories exist
for listing ecological communities, depending on the level of extinction risk: vulnerable, endangered
or critically endangered.

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital
Territory ecological community was listed as endangered in 2000. However, it has since been
recognised that these grasslands occur more broadly across the south eastern highlands and
adjacent areas. Therefore this listing review is being conducted to assess the broader distribution
and take account of new information. The updated listing will also introduce a minimum condition
threshold, to help determine when patches should be considered a matter of national
environmental significance.

Public consultation and input from land managers is an important and valuable part of the
assessment process. This public consultation period is open until 30 May 2014. Comments will
be considered by the Committee. Following this, the Committee will finalise their listing assessment
and give their advice to the Minister for the Environment, the Hon. Greg Hunt.

Comments received during consultation are also forwarded to the Minister for consideration when
making the listing decision, which is due by the end of 2014. Under the EPBC Act, the minister’s
listing decision is made on whether the ecological community meets the listing criteria, which
conservation category applies and whether listing will benefit its survival.



What is the Natural Temperate Grasslands of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community?

As described above, the South Eastern Highlands grassland ecological community is an extension
of the existing listing of the grasslands on the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian
Capital Territory.

¢ The ecological community is mainly found within the South Eastern Highlands bioregion with
some patches occurring in the areas immediately adjacent (see accompanying indicative
distribution map on website). Local Government Areas across this region include Bathurst,
Bega Valley, Blayney, Bombala, Boorowa, Cabonne, Cooma-Monaro, Cowra, Cowra,
Eurobodalla, Goulburn Mulwarree, Gundagai, Harden, Lithgow, Oberon, Orange, Palerang,
Queanbeyan, Shoalhaven, Snowy River, Tumbarumba, Tumut, Upper Lachlan and Yass
Valley (although the ecological community may not be present in all these areas).

e |t occurs at altitudes up to 1200 m, and as low as 250 m in some parts of its distribution.

e The ecological community occurs on a wide range of topographic positions and on soils
derived from a variety of substrates, including granites, basalts, sediments, colluvium and
alluvium.

e |tis a naturally treeless or sparsely treed community characterised by a dominance of native
perennial tussock grasses, the tallest stratum of which is typically up to 1.0 m in height, when
present.

o There is usually a second, lower stratum of shorter perennial and annual grasses and forbs
growing between the taller tussocks, and there may be a third discontinuous stratum of even
smaller forbs and grasses. Sedges and rushes may also occur, particularly in seasonally wet
areas.

¢ The major dominant or co-dominant grass species are: Themeda triandra syn. T. australis
(kangaroo grass), Poa sieberiana (snowgrass), Poa labillardierei var. labillardierei (river
tussock grass), Austrostipa bigeniculata (kneed speargrass), Austrostipa scabra var. falcata
(slender speargrass), Bothriochloa macra (red grass), various Rytidosperma species syn.
Austrodanthonia species (wallaby grasses) and Lachnagrostis filiformis (blowngrass).

¢ The dominant or co-dominant grasses occur in association with a range of other native
herbaceous species, including many forb and grass-like species.

e Forb species that are more frequently dominant or co-dominant with the grasses include
Acaena ovina (sheep's burr), Asperula spp (woodruffs), Chrysocephalum apiculatum (common
everlasting, yellow buttons), Convolvulus angustissima (bindweed), Euchiton spp,
Leptorhynchos squamatus (scaly buttons), Lomandra spp, Plantago varia (variable plantain)
and Vittadinia muelleri (narrow-leaf New Holland daisy).

What are the benefits of listing an ecological community as
nationally threatened?

There are a number of benefits to listing ecological communities under Australia’s national
environment law:

e Listing an ecological community can help to protect the landscapes that provide connectivity,
corridors and refuge essential to protect and improve the ecological function, health and
biodiversity of the region. It can protect habitat critical for refuge and recruitment of threatened
species and for other species that are under pressure in the region. In turn, this helps foster the
ecosystem services associated with an ecological community.

o Listing threatened ecological communities helps protect them from future significant human
impacts that may cause further decline. The aim of the national environment law is to ensure
the matters of national environmental significance are given due consideration, along with
broader economic, social and other issues in the planning of any large projects. Where
possible, significant adverse impacts to the environment should be avoided, or the impacts
mitigated, reduced or offset, when unavoidable.



¢ National listing encourages agencies and community/Landcare groups to apply for
environmental funding opportunities for conservation and recovery works. The Australian
Government has a variety of funding programmes to encourage land managers to continue to
conserve biodiversity and ecosystem services on their properties.

e A conservation advice, published at the time of listing, provides guidance and options for
environmental decision-making, including rehabilitation and conservation initiatives in the
region.

¢ In the case of the Natural Temperate Grasslands ecological community, the listing:

0 provides landscape-scale protection that complements existing national protection of many
threatened plants and animals that are found within the ecological community; and,

0 protects the environmental values, including all the ecosystem functions and services
associated with the ecological community, which contributes to the long-term productivity of
the landscape.

What does a listing mean for landholders?

The national environment law is triggered if an action is likely to have a significant impact on the
Natural Temperate Grasslands ecological community. If a proposed action is likely to have such an
impact, it requires:

o referral (determining if the action may have a significant impact on the ecological community)

e assessment (the scope of the assessment depends on the complexity of the proposed action
and impacts)

e a decision on approval from the minister (who considers the environmental, social and
economic factors involved).

Social and economic matters may be taken into account for individual projects that may have a
significant impact on the ecological community, through the EPBC Act approvals process. Strict
timeframes apply to assessments to ensure decisions are made as quickly as possible.

The normal activities of individual landholders and residents are typically not affected by a listing.
Routine property maintenance, land management and other established practices are unlikely to
have a significant impact and so do not require referral under national environment law, particularly
if carried out in line with other national and state laws covering native vegetation.

For instance, the following actions are unlikely to trigger national environment law:
e ongoing grazing, horticultural or cropping activities

¢ maintaining existing fences, roads, internal access tracks and firebreaks

e maintaining farm gardens and orchards

e maintaining existing farm dams or water storages

e maintaining existing pumps and clearing drainage lines

¢ replacing and maintaining sheds, yards and other farm buildings

e controlling weeds and spraying for pests on individual properties.

In all these cases impacts on important patches of the ecological community (e.g high quality,
important corridor for wildlife) should be avoided.

Whether or not an action is likely to have a significant impact depends upon the sensitivity, value
and quality of the environment which is impacted, and upon the intensity, duration, magnitude and
geographic extent of the impacts. The major activity that is likely to have a significant impact on the
ecological community is permanently clearing large or otherwise important areas of intact or high-
quality native vegetation. This might include, for example, major mining, residential, commercial or
other industrial development, developing wind farms, building new roads or widening existing roads
or tracks (e.g. for electricity transmission lines), or converting large areas into new pastures or
cropping fields. To help reduce significance of actions, the EPBC Act promotes the avoidance and
mitigation of impacts, wherever that is possible.



Where can | get further information?

Information on the existing listing of Natural Temperate Grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW
and the Australian Capital Territory: http://www.environment.gov.au/cgi-
bin/sprat/public/publiclookupcommunities.pl

The listing process: www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/index.html
The EPBC referral and approval process: www.environment.gov.au/epbc/
Australian Government natural resource management initiatives: www.nrm.gov.au/

The department’'s Community Information Unit: by phone on 1800 803 772 (freecall), or email at
ciu@environment.gov.au

The EPBC liaison officer with the National Farmers Federation: by email at environment@nff.org.au



IR 191003

Document 5
s47F
From: s47F
Sent: Tuesday, 21 February 2017 9:25 AM
To: Collins, Monica
Cc: s47F
Subject: FW: URGENT TALKING POINTS Clearing of Natural Temperate Grasslands NSW [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Monica
As requested | have prepared a summary to inform your discussions with by s47F from the MO that relate to alleged clearing of a critically endangered ecological

community in southern NSW.
NSW Legislative Changes
On Thursday 17 November 2016 the Biodiversity Conservation Bill 2016 and the Local Land Services Amendment Bill 2016, were passed by the NSW Parliament. These Acts

come into full effect in July 2017 and repeal and replace the Threatened Species Conservation Act 1995, the Native Vegetation Act 2003 and the Nature Conservation Trust
Act 2001.

The legislative changes will introduce a suite of land-clearing Codes, regulatory mapping and Regulations aimed at assisting NSW rural landholders identify areas of their
property that can be cleared of native vegetation, either without need for further state approval or through a defined process such as biodiversity offsetting. This schema
may result in increased land clearing rates within the rural sector in New South Wales. Because the State process does not fully consider the potential impacts on matters
of national environmental significance protected under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 it is likely that some landholders, operating
within, and in accordance with, the state regulations will contravening Part 3 of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 through taking a
controlled action without an approval being in place under national environmental law.

General Information on listing of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community

¢ The native grasslands in the Southern Tablelands region of NSW and the ACT have been listed as a threatened ecological community since the start of the
Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (16 July 2000), and before that under the Commonwealth Endangered Species Protection Act 1992.

¢ The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community was listed on 6 April 2016 as a result of a review of the original listing,
which was known as Natural temperate grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory. This review was conducted to take
account of new information, in line with the 2006 National Recovery Plan for this ecological community.

¢ The revised listing added a ‘minimum condition threshold’, which identifies which areas of grassland are protected by the EPBC Act. Low quality grasslands that do
not meet this threshold are not protected, whereas some of these areas would have been included in the previous listing.

0 To be considered the listed ecological community, grassland patches must be at least 0.1 Hectare in size, must have a greater percentage cover of native
vascular plants (including annual and perennial species) than the percentage cover of perennial exotic species (ie >50% native cover) , and must meet

1
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additional condition thresholds. These thresholds relate to the diversity of non-grass native species, the presence of particular ‘indicator species’ or the
floristic value score.

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

e The Department is investigating relating to clearing of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community in the Corrowong
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

s47F | A/g Director |
Compliance
Environment Standards Division |

Department of Environment and Energy
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601

s4/7F
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SATF
From: s47F
Sent: Tuesday, 7 March 2017 7:57 AM
To: S47F
Subject: FW: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Importance: High
FYI
From:s47F
Sent: Tuesday, 7 March 2017 7:50 AM
To: Collins, Monica s47F CEBWorkflow <CEBWorkflow@environment.gov.au>; Richardson, Geoff
s47F
Cc:S47F

Subject: RE: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Importance: High

Monica
Revised response below for your consideration and clearance.

Thanks
S47F

The listing of Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands is unlikely to have any significant practical implication for landholders, that was not present prior
to the listing.

Farmers, as land managers generally have a deep appreciation of what constitutes a native pasture. The initial threshold for native pastures (grasslands), of containing at
least 50% native cover, is one that most farmers would be confidently able to make informed by, amongst other things, their historic affiliations with the land.

In NSW, farmers are generally aware of local and state regulations which relate to land clearing but are likely to be less aware of national environmental law. Nevertheless,
the prohibitions placed by the NSW state regulations in relation to native grasslands, have a significantly lower threshold than that which is imposed by the EPBC Act. That
is, the requirement to gain state approvals is triggered at a significantly lower threshold than the requirement to refer an action at the Federal level

1
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State legislation is triggered when a material change of use is likely to result in removal of protected grasslands. At the Federal level there is an elevated test insofar as the
material change would need to also result in a significantly impacts on a protected matter before approval under the EPBC Act would be required. Material change of use
could include a range of actions such as conversion from grazing of native pastures to a market garden, permanent cropping, horticulture or tourism development which, at
the State level are likely to require offsets for the environmental impacts of the clearing. In NSW this type of clearing is assessed according to the Environmental Outcomes
Assessment Methodology and the landholder will require a Property Vegetation Plan.

If a farmer is unable to make a decision about the presence or quality of native vegetation on their property there is a range of services, tools and publications available at
the local, state and national level.

For example, In 2014 NSW the state government introduced the “Local Land Services” as are a primary conduit of information to the rural community, including providing
advice that develop a healthy, diverse and connected natural environment within the rural sector. The Department of Environment and Energy provided information to the
LLS about the uplisting of Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands for distribution.

s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)

Advice provided by Ecological Communities Section

We have received comments that implementation of the revised listing has been problematic. In particular, it can lead to a mosaic of protected and non-protected areas

inside existing paddocks and regarding the exclusion of clover from the 50% threshold. Can you provide any comments around practicality of implementation?

¢ Listed ecological communities occur wherever a patch of native vegetation in the landscape meets the diagnostic features, plus the condition thresholds for that
community. This is similar to identifying habitat requirements for particular listed threatened species except that it applies to a described assemblage of species,
usually a certain vegetation type, and which vegetation is protected is clearly set out in the conservation advice for ecological communities at the time of listing. A
mosaic distribution is typical for many ecological communities because of variability in landscape features that govern where an ecological community can occur, and
variability in past management history that influences what natural vegetation remains and what condition it’s in.

e Both the original and revised grassland listings constituted a ‘mosaic’ as the community was always naturally restricted in where it can occur. However, the revised
listing introduced a ‘minimum condition threshold’, that clarifies which areas of grassland should be protected by the Environment Protection and Biodiversity
Conservation Act 1999. Low quality grasslands that do not meet this threshold are not protected, whereas some of these areas would have been included in the original
listing. Large areas that have more than 50% vegetation cover of clover (Trifolium spp.), which is not a native plant, are not part of the grassland ecological
community.

¢ Detailed information about how to recognise a patch of the grassland and what condition it might be in are given in the approved conservation advice and also the
information guide for the uplisted community. The information guide provides a flowchart to help landholders determine the condition of the grassland. So, the new
information for the revised listing makes it clearer for landholders to determine if the listed grassland is present.




e With regard to practicalities of implementation, it is hard to generalise across properties, as every paddock will be different. It is important to remember that an
ecological community listing does not create ‘protected areas’ as such, rather the listing requires approval of actions that may significantly impact the ecological
community, whether these actions occur within the community or around it. So landowners managing a paddock that contains a patch or patches of the ecological
community will have to determine if their actions are likely to significantly impact the ecological community, and alter them to avoid the impacts or refer their activities
for approval as required. In making this determination, some general considerations can be made:

0 Firstly, the continuing use provision of the EPBC Act means routine and ongoing activities (including longer-term grazing and cropping) are exempt from the
EPBC Act. Actions such as grazing and slashing that are already occurring can continue without approval despite the presence of the listed grassland.

0 Secondly, there is a minimum patch size of 0.1 hectare (1,000 m?) and other condition measures must also be met. This means localised small areas of native
grassland amongst a paddock that is overall non-native are unlikely to be protected. Hence, farmers no longer need to consider impacts to every small or
degraded area of native pasture.

0 Thirdly, only likely significant impacts need be considered. These are likely to be limited to larger patches where the grassland remains of good quality, that is
mostly native with good diversity of native wildflowers. Any large and good quality remnants of grassland should be readily identifiable in the landscape,
especially in springtime.

0 Finally, not all management actions are detrimental to the grassland. If a large patch has persisted in good quality then it’s likely the existing management
regime should continue. It is only when a drastic change of land management, for instance converting from grazing to ploughing and cropping, is proposed that
the action may need to be considered for referral.

What are the available avenues/ process to review a listing decision?

A listed ecological community is subject to disallowance for 15 sitting days of Parliament after the instrument has been registered. This period has passed for the grassland
ecological community. Once an ecological community has been listed, it can only be removed from the list if the Minister is satisfied that it is no longer eligible to be
included on the list or its inclusion will not contribute to its survival. In deciding whether to delist the community, the Minister cannot consider any other matters. This
particular listing decision followed a comprehensive review against listing criteria by the independent Threatened Species Scientific Committee.

From: Collins, Monica

Sent: Monday, 6 March 2017 10:38 AM

To: CEBWorkflow <CEBWorkflow@environment.gov.au>; S47F Richardson, Geoff
s47F

Subject: RE: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Thanks s47F

| don’t think we have really answered the question in yellow highlight below. Can you please have another look at this in consultation with WHAM. | think
this is in reference to whether there are patches of the listed community interspersed with patches of non-listed communities, and how practical it is to
manage.



Could you also please provide an answer to: what are the available avenues/ process to review a listing decision?

MO has requested we respond by end of today so would appreciate you giving priority to meet this deadline.

Thanks
Monica

Who made the decision to uplist the EC — Hunt, Frydenberg or Delegate?

« The uplisting decision was made by Greg Hunt, as Minister for the Environment at the time.

We have received comments that implementation of the revised listing has been problematic. In particular, it can lead to a mosaic of protected and non-protected areas
inside existing paddocks and regarding the exclusion of clover from the 50% threshold. Can you provide any comments around practicality of implementation?

Listed ecological communities occur wherever a patch of native vegetation in the landscape meets the diagnostic features, plus the condition thresholds
for that community. This is similar to identifying habitat requirements for particular listed threatened species except that it applies to a described
assemblage of species, usually a certain vegetation type.

A mosaic distribution is typical for many ecological communities because of: 1) variability in landscape features — for instance grasslands often form in
frost hollows and sites of cold air drainage; and 2) variability in past management history — for instance the degree of grazing, ploughing and fertiliser
addition affects the composition and diversity of grassland species among and within sites.

Both the original and revised listings constituted a ‘mosaic’ as the community was always naturally restricted in where it can occur. However, the revised
listing introduced a ‘minimum condition threshold’, that clarifies which areas of grassland should be protected by the Environment Protection and
Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. Low quality grasslands that do not meet this threshold are not protected, whereas some of these areas would have
been included in the original listing.

Large areas that have more than 50% vegetation cover of clover (Trifolium spp.), which is not a native plant, are not part of the grassland ecological
community.

To be considered part of the listed ecological community, grassland patches must be at least 0.1 Hectare in size, must have a greater percentage cover of
native plants (including annual and perennial species) than the percentage cover of perennial exotic species (i.e. >50% native cover), and must meet
additional condition thresholds (e.g. relating to the diversity of non-grass native species, or the presence of particular ‘indicator species’).

Detailed information about how to recognise a patch of the grassland and what condition it might be in are given in the approved conservation advice and
the information guide for the uplisted community. The information guide provides a flowchart to help landholders determine the condition of the grassland.

Can you please provide overview of consultation and feedback from farmer groups regarding the uplisting?

The original listing, recovery plan and revised listing all went through statutory consultation processes.



* Notification emails about the uplisting were sent to a wide range of stakeholders, including all councils, Local Land Services, and state agencies where the
ecological community occurs, and the National Farmers’ Federation and NSW Farmers’ Association. These Farmers’ groups also were contacted by the
Department’s Environment Liaison Officer, out posted to the NFF, and the Department met with the NFF to discuss the listing on more than one occasion.
A farmer specific consultation guide was made available as part of the consultation package, explaining the listing review process and what this meant for
farming activities.

* The NSW Farmers Association did not provide any comment on the proposed uplisting. The NFF provided a submission noting concerns that further
information would be required to complete the assessment and that landholders may have difficulty identifying the grassland. The Department replied to
the NFF about their issues.

* A public information guide aimed at helping famers and other landholders understand the uplisted grassland was prepared and released after the listing.
This guide was developed with the assistance of the NFF.

Monica Collins
Assistant Secretary Compliance and Enforcement

Department of the Environment and Energy
S4TF

S47F

From:S47F

Sent: Thursday, 2 March 2017 9:54 AM

To: Collins, Monica S47F

Cc: de Brouwer, Gordon S47F ; Knudson, Dean s47F

S47TF CEBWorkflow <CEBWorkflow@environment.gov.au>; $47F
S47F

Subject: RE: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Monica
Can you please clarify the following:
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



Can you please let me know by end of Monday.

Thanks

s47F

From: Collins, Monica

Sent: Tuesday, 28 February 2017 5:14 PM

To:S47F

Cc: de Brouwer, Gordon S47F Knudson, Dean S47F

s47F CEBWorkflow <CEBWorkflow@environment.gov.au>; S47F
s47F

Subject: Monaro grasslands [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi S4TF

Please see information below as requested.

Monica

General Information on Grasslands

« In the Monaro region of NSW, matters of national environmental significance protected by the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation
Act 1999 include the critically endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community.

* This grassland ecological community has been protected in the Monaro region as endangered under the Act since the Act was introduced in 2000,
and was up listed to critically endangered in 2016.

e The revision of the listing of the endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory to
the critically endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands resulted in protection of grasslands in a broader geographic
area, but limits the protection to areas of the highest quality grasslands.

o0 Within the extent of the previous listing (Southern Tablelands of NSW and the ACT), the area protected by the listing (and subsequently the
number of landholders affected) is considered to be reduced. However, the geographic extent of the new listing is larger than it was for the
previous listing (for example, it now includes parts of Victoria).



« The minimum condition thresholds (see below) contained in the Conservation Advice for the revised listing allow greater certainty for landholders in
determining whether the Act applies to their proposed actions.

e To be considered the listed ecological community, grassland patches must be at least 0.1 Hectare in size, must have a greater percentage cover of
native vascular plants (including annual and perennial species) than the percentage cover of perennial exotic species (i.e. >50% native cover), and
must meet additional condition thresholds (eg relating to the diversity of non-grass native species, the presence of particular ‘indicator species’ or the
floristic value score). Note - this is a simplified overview of the minimum condition thresholds.

« Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands is listed as critically endangered under the EPBC Act. The threshold of significance for
proposed activities is dependent on the quality and context of the impacted ecological community, but is likely to be in the region of 1-10 ha.
Compliance Investigation Background

e The Department is investigating clearing of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community at Corrowong in
Southern NSW.

e Corrowong lies within a bioregion that has known occurrences of protected Natural Temperate Grasslands. These grasslands have been protected
since the EPBC Act came into force in July 2000. The 2016 up listing has not placed any additional compliance burden on landholders that was not
present before the up listing came into effect.

e The grasslands on the property in question are included within the boundary of the previous listing, as well as the revised listing. The prope3r7t1y irlg:GILljdes
areas of native grasslands that meet the revised listing (requiring high quality of native grasslands), and areas of lower quality grasslands. ° R

s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)



s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)

Monica Collins
Assistant Secretary Compliance and Enforcement

Department of the Environment and Energy
S47F
S4TF



From:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Date:

IR 191003
Document 7

Monica Collins

s47F
Papps, David; S47F ; de Brouwer, Gordon; Office of Compliance; DS47F

RE: NSW Monaro/Corrowong media [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Thursday, 3 August 2017 12:55:06 PM

Attachments: Brief QIB 170728 Monaro Land Clearing.docx

Hello S47F
Please see the extended notes attached to address your questions below. While some of
the media comments related to State legislation, | have addressed from a Commonwealth

perspective.

Monica

Monica Collins

Chief Compliance Officer
Office of Compliance
Department of the Environment and Energy

s47F

From:S47F

Sent: Monday, 31 July 2017 3:50 PM
To: Collins, MonicaS47F

Cc: Papps, DavidS47F

S4TF

de Brouwer, Gordon
Office of Compliance

<OoCWorkflow@environment.gov.au>; S47F

Subject: RE: NSW Monaro/Corrowong media [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Thanks. Can we please add some further information as set out below.

In terms of the TPs provided, can we elaborate on the awareness point to include consultation

with NFF, etc during the listing process.

Is it worth adding TPs for the following:

“In the situation as it stood two days ago, for 80 per cent of the Monaro, we could

not spray out a paddock - which is a very routine farming practice - without
government authorisation. We’d have to get a government officer to come in here
and certify if we could do that and that’s on 80pc of our country - not 20pc or
30pc.” - Can we say that EPBC listing is only expected to impact x% of the
Monaro grasslands?

“Top of the list of the farmer’s six demands was to see “strict criteria” in terms of
what would activate the mapping and how accuracy was defined” — Although the
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s47F

demands may be in relation to state regulation, can we refer to Cth actions where
we have provided greater specificity/certainty to farmers.

“other concerns were; having a short, simple explanatory document for farmers on
the process and impacts of regulating land given the complexity;” — Although the
concerns may have been in relation to state regulation, can we refer to Cth
explanatory document.

Mr Taylor said he couldn’t find anyone within the NSW Local Land Services
division who knew of the federal listing of the region under the EPBC Act and the
federal government had made “zero effort” to get information out to farmers. —
Have we briefed LLS?

He said the listing’s definition of native versus non-native grasslands also
excluded annuals. “That was a major point for us in the state legislation but they’ve
also done it with the EPBC Act,” he said. — Can we refer to Cth seeking to make
Cth and state regulation consistent as requested by farmers?

Mr Taylor said he found out about the listing under the Act when he sprayed some
of his property at Delegate but a letter was sent by the federal government saying
they believed the EPBC Act had been breached. — The potential breach being
investigated relates to the previous law and not the law as amended. Can we also
refer to awareness actions as the law previously applied?

Mr Green said lack of communication in the negotiating process around the
developing legislation in recent times had also been frustrating, with NSWFarmers
required to sign a deed of confidentiality to be at the table and therefore unable to
disseminate information to members effectively. — Is this correct? Can we refer to
opportunities for consultation without confidentiality restrictions?

Mr Green said his understanding of the EPBC Act was that the only time federal
laws were supposed to come into play was in the absence of a state’s native
vegetation plan. — Not correct. The two systems work in parallel, with actions
taken to align, etc wherever possible. Can we point to Cth action to explain how
EPBC Act works?

From: Collins, Monica
Sent: Friday, 28 July 2017 5:09 PM

To:S47F
Cc: Papps, DavidS47F s47F

de Brouwer, Gordon
s47F Office of Compliance

<0oCWorkflow@environment.gov.au>; S47F

Subject: RE: NSW Monaro/Corrowong media [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]



HiS47F
Please see talking points, including table as requested.

Regards
Monica

Monica Collins

Chief Compliance Officer

Office of Compliance

Department of the Environment and Energy

From: SATF

Sent: Friday, 28 July 2017 1:57 PM

Tos Collns, Monica <S4

S4TF . Officeof Compliance
<QoCWorkllow@environment gov au> SATF I

Subject: Re: NSW Monaro/Corrowong media [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Coukd you please provide a table of the different accusations and our response to each.
| note they mention strict criteria which | understand is consistent with a lot of our recent work.
Thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On 28Jul 2017, at 13:08, Collins, Monica<s47F ~ wrote:
AT o T

Please see media at link below. | will update the talking points this afternoon.
Monica

http://www.farmonline.com.au/story/4815592/farmers-fear-regulatory-double-

strike-on-native-vegetation/

Monica Collins

Chief Compliance Officer

Office of Compliance

Department of the Environment and Energy
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND ENERGY Document 7a

Division: Office of Compliance
CLEARING OF GRASSLANDS IN THE MONARO REGION, NEW SOUTH WALES
Issues

Agricultural land holders have raised concern about protection of native grasslands in the
Monaro Region of NSW.

Talking points

e The Department is investigating clearing of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community in the Corrowong region of Southern NSW.

e The Department is working with the land holder to resolve the matter.
Background
State governments have the primary role for regulating land clearing for agriculture

o State Governments have primary carriage of planning and development decisions within
their jurisdiction, including for land clearing.

¢ The Commonwealth only regulates actions which are likely to result in a significant impact to
matters protected under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act
1999. These actions need to be approved under the Act before they can be undertaken.

e The Act applies nationally, and can apply to activities already approved by state
governments under state laws.

New native vegetation laws are due to commence in NSW on 25 August

e The Department is working with NSW Farmers, National Farmers Federation and NSW co-
regulators on opportunities to support landholders to know about their obligations under
national environmental law.

The Department is working with the land holder to resolve the matter

¢ The Department has undertaken inspections on the property. Expert advice indicates that
up to 30ha of the protected ecological community has been impacted.

s37(1)(a), s47G(1)(a)

Contact Officer: S47F Cleared by (SES level): Monica Collins
Telephone: S47F Telephone: S47F

Last updated: 13/12/2019 12:08 PM
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Listing of Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands

¢ Natural Temperate Grasslands in the ACT and Southern Tablelands, with core areas
around Canberra and Cooma, have been protected under the Environment Protection and
Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 since the Act was introduced in 2000.

¢ The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community
was listed in the Critically Endangered category on 6 April 2016.

o Between 16 July 2000 and 5 April 2016, the extent of this ecological community was
included with the listed endangered Natural Temperate Grassland of the Southern
Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory ecological community.

e The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological community
came about as a result of a review of the Natural temperate grassland of the Southern
Tablelands of NSW and the Australian Capital Territory (listed as endangered in 2000). This
review was conducted to take account of new information, and to recognise a broader
distribution than was acknowledged in the original listing.

There was broad consultation with farmers, Local Land Services and farmers representatives

o There was statutory public consultation on the original listing and throughout development of
a recovery plan for the grasslands in the mid to late 2000s.

¢ In addition, public consultation on the 2016 review exceeded the statutory requirements of
the EPBC Act. Targeted emails were sent to a wide range of stakeholders, including all
councils, Local Land Services, and state agencies where the ecological community occurs,
and the National Farmers’ Federation (NFF) and NSW Farmers’ Association. These
Farmers’ groups were contacted by the Department’s Environment Liaison Officer with the
NFF, and the Department met with the NFF to discuss the listing on multiple occasions.

¢ Inresponse to the call for public comments, a submission by the NFF did not oppose the
listing but asked for further clarification on some issues with the listing assessment and
raised some concerns about complexity for farmers. The Department’s response to the NFF
addressed their concerns and some broader issues around the EPBC Act that were being
discussed with them at the time. The NFF did not reply in writing again, but there were
ongoing conversations with the NFF about the grasslands listing review over almost 2 years
following their submission and before Minister Hunt made the final listing decision on 6 April
2016. This culminated in publication of a post-listing information guide that the NFF helped
the Department draft to address their concerns about helping farmers better understand the
listing.

e With changes to the NSW legislation there is an opportunity to increase awareness of the
listing and EPBC Act in general. Agencies such as Local Land Services can play a big role
in this by using their connections with local communities and individual landholders.



Talking points as they relate to Commonwealth matters raised in the FarmOnline media are

included in the table below.

Issue raised in
FarmOnline

Talking Points

Article claims duplication
between state and federal
laws.

State Governments have primary carriage of planning and
development decisions within their jurisdiction, including for
land clearing.

The Commonwealth only regulates actions which are likely
to result in a significant impact to matters protected under
the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation
Act 1999. These actions need to be approved under the
Act before they can be undertaken.

The Act applies nationally, and can apply to activities
already approved by state governments under state laws.
This point is made in guidance documents published by the
Department- see below.

Farmers want certainty
about when Commonwealth
legislation applies (strict
criteria; explanatory notes,
condition thresholds).

The Department has published guidelines to assist land
holders to determine whether approval is required for a
proposed action, and can provide advice on a case-by-case
basis.

Under Australia’s national environmental law, approval is
required to take an action that is likely to significantly impact
on a matter protected by the EPBC Act.

Through the revision of the listing of the natural temperate
grasslands ecological community, strict criteria were put in
place to establish minimum condition thresholds, below
which grasslands are not protected under national
environmental law.

The Department has published explanatory documents
relating to the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community on its website.

The Department has published guidelines about the
operation of the EPBC Act, and what it means for farmers.

The Department welcomes the opportunity to discuss with
landholders the potential application of the EPBC Act to
their properties.

Relevant links:

Farming and national environmental law

Farmers and the national environmental law (EPBC Act)




Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands:
a nationally protected ecological community

Condition thresholds e The revised ecological community listing requires that
grassland patches must be at least 1000m? (0.1 Hectare) in
size, must have >50% native cover (compared to exotic
species), and in some cases must meet additional condition
thresholds (e.g. the diversity of non-grass native species,
the presence of particular ‘indicator species’). This is
intended to exclude low conservation value grasslands,
such as low diversity native pastures.

e Detailed information about how to recognise a patch of the
grassland and what condition it might be in are given in the
approved conservation advice and information guide for the
grasslands developed in consultation with the NFF. Most
usefully, the information guide provides a simple flowchart
to help landholders determine the condition of the
grassland.

e Most landholders have a great knowledge of the species
occurring on their properties and would be able to apply the
flow chart to determine if they are likely to have the
threatened grasslands community. If there is still a question
as to whether the ecological community is present, then
landholders may seek further guidance from the
Department, or Local Land Services officers.

Article claims that 80 per e The Monaro is made up of a range of different vegetation
cent of the Monar.o could types, of which native grasslands is a key type. Much of the
not be sprayed without native vegetation has been converted to pastures, which
government authorisation. . e .

has led to a major loss of extent and condition in native
vegetation. The EPBC Act listing assessment estimates
that around 10% of the nationally-defined grassland
ecological community remains.

e Continuing use provisions in the EPBC Act mean that any
areas that have sprayed on a regular basis are likely to be
exempt from further approval.

e Through the revision of the listing of the natural temperate
grasslands ecological community, strict criteria were put in
place to establish minimum condition thresholds, below
which grasslands are not protected under national
environmental law.

¢ Even if the condition thresholds are met for a particular
area, many farming activities will not be considered a
significant impact, requiring approval.

Mr Taylor says that farmers | ¢ At the start of the consultation period on the review of the
in the region had zero ecological community listing, notification emails were sent
awareness about the listing to a wide range of stakeholders, including all councils,
Local Land Services, and state agencies where the
ecological community occurs, amongst others. The

4




of the grassland community
under the EPBC Act.

Department also met with the National Farmers Federation
to discuss the listing.

Following the listing, email notifications were sent to the
stakeholders listed above.

The Department is working with NSW government co-
regulators to support land owners to know about their
obligations under national environmental law.

Mr Taylor says NSW Local
Land Services are not
aware of the federal listing
and the federal government
made no effort to get
information to farmers.

As well as familiarity with the previous listing, officers from
South East Local Land Services were involved throughout
the listing re-assessment from 2014-16, including
participating at a workshop. South East Local Land
Services were also notified of the public consultation period
for the re-assessment, and the listing after it occurred; and
were sent notification and hardcopies of the listing
information guide (to all Local Land Services offices within
the South East region) in mid-2016.

South East Local Land Services has also received
Australian Government grants to protect and manage the
EPBC Act listed grasslands.

The federal government
requires consideration of
impacts down to 0.1
hectares. This scale is
unworkable.

The Department has published guidelines to assist land
holders to determine whether approval is required for a
proposed action, and can provide advice on a case-by-
case basis.

Under Australia’s national environmental law, approval is
required to take an action that is likely to significantly
impact on a matter protected by the EPBC Act.

Low value grasslands are not included in the national
listing because condition thresholds are specified in the
listing.

While 0.1 hectare is the threshold size to be considered the
Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern
Highlands ecological community, it also has to meet the
condition thresholds. In addition, it does not follow that this
is also the threshold to be considered a significant impact,
requiring approval.
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Subject:
Date:
Attachments:
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Page 1of 2 Docld: 3E5008838 ACN : 1311157 IR 191003
Document 8a

Australian Securities & Electronic Lodgement

Investments Commission Document No. 3E5008838

Lodgement date/time: 11-07-2017 14:19:31
Reference Id: 101667644 Trace No. : 1012142

Form 484
Corporations Act 2001

Change to company details

Company details Company name
JAM LAND PTY LIMITED
Australian Company Number (ACN)
131 115789

Lodgement details Who should ASIC contact if there is a query about this form?

Name

BOYCE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS - COOMA
ASIC registered agent number (if applicable)

3635

Signature
This form must be signed by a current officeholder of the company.

| certify that the information in this form is true and complete
Name

WILLIAM ARTHUR JEFFREYS

Capacity

SEC

Signature

Date signed
13-06-2017

ASIC Form 484 Ref 10166764411/07/2017 Page 1 Of 2


a25877
Text Box
IR 191003
Document 8a


Page 2 of 2 Docld: 3E5008838 ACN : 1311157

Form 484 - Change to company details
JAM LAND PTY LIMITEDACN131115789

Al Change of address

Company officeholder's residential address
Officeholder details

Given names WILLIAM ARTHUR
Family name JEFFREYS
Birth Details

Date of Birth 03-04-1979
City/town of Bith COOM A
State (if born in Australia) N S\W

Country of Bith Australia

Address
79 THE MOUNTAIN ROAD
BUNGENDORE NSW
2621
Australia
Effective Date 13-06-2017
Member's address Member's address
If there are more than 20 members in Member details
a share class, only add'rless change for Given names WILLIAM ARTHUR
the top 20 need be notified.
Family name JEFFREYS
Address
79 THE MOUNTAIN ROAD
BUNGENDORE NSW
2621
Australia
Effective Date 13-06-2017

ASIC Form 484 Ref 10166764411/07/2017 Page 2 Of 2
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Document 8b

Australian Securities & Electronic Lodgement

Investments Commission Document No. 7E9144973

Lodgement date/time: 13-06-2017 15 27:54
Reference Id: 100566974

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

DAVID CRAIK MITCHELL

Capacity

Director

Signature

Date signed
13-06-2017

ASIC Form 484 Ref 10056697413/06/2017 Page 1 Of 3


a25877
Text Box
IR 191003
Document 8b


Page 2 of 3 Docld: 7E9144973 ACN : 1311157

Form 484 - Change to company details
JAM LAND PTY LIMITEDACN131 115 789

C4 Changes to the register of members

The changes apply Changes to member's register details
to members whose Member details
shareholding has changed Given names JOHN FRANZ
Family name AUER
Address

2742 MCKILLOPS ROAD
TUBBUT VIC 3888

Earliest date of 18-05-2017
change
The changes are
Share Shares Increased [Share Decreased by|Total number now [Total $ paid [Total $ unpaid|Fully [Beneficially [Top 20
class by held paid [held member
code
ORD 24 0 0 0 Y Y
The changes apply Changes to member's register details
to members whose Member details
shareholding has changed i
g g Given names SKYE
Family name AUER
Address

2742 MCKILLOPSROAD
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
ORD -24 0 0 0 Y Y
The changes apply Changes to member's register details
to members whose Member details

shareholding has changed
Company Name

TONYREID PTY LTD

ABN or ACN or ARBN or ARSN
125 949 537

Address
14 NORTON STREET
RANDWICK NSW 2031
Australia

Member details

Company Name

GUFEE PTY LIMITED

ABN or ACN or ARBN or ARSN
080 516 294

ASIC Form 484 Ref 10056697413/06/2017 Page 2 Of 3
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Form 484 - Change to company details

3 of 3

Docld: 7E9144973 ACN : 1311157

JAM LAND PTY LIMITEDACN131 115 789

Address
14 DICKSON STREET
BRONTE NSW 2024
Australia

Member details

Company Name
FAIRROSSPTY.LTD.

ABN or ACN or ARBN or ARSN
080434 975

Address
FAIRFIELD
NIMMITABEL
NSW 2631
Australia

Member details

Company Name
PAAA.PTY.LTD.

ABN or ACN or ARBN or ARSN
080 467 376

Address
BELLEVUE
NIMMITABEL
NSW 2631
Australia

Member details

Company Name
C&CTAYLOR HOLDINGSPTY LIMITED

ABN or ACN or ARBN or ARSN

074 513 018
Address
C/-JAMESRAE & CO ACCOUNTANTS
UNIT 9
26 RIDGE STREET
NORTH SYDNEY NSW 2060
Australia
Earliest date of 18-05-2017
change
The changes are
Share Shares Increased [Share Decreased by|Total number now ([Total $ paid [Total $ unpaid|Fully [Beneficially [Top 20
class by held paid fheld member
code
ORD 48 48 48.00 0.00 Y N

Date of entry of 18-05-2017
member's name in
register

ASIC Form 484 Ref 10056697413/06/2017
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

Page 3 of 3
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Current Company Extract for JAM LAND PTY LIMITED [Document &d

Extracted from ASIC database on 09 Apr 2019 08:02 AM AEST

Th s extract conta ns nformat on der ved from the Austra an Secur t es and Investment Comm ss on's (ASIC) database under
secton 1274A of the Corporat ons Act 2001. P ease adv se ASIC of any error or om ss on wh ch you may dent fy.

Organisation Details

Name: JAM LAND PTY LIMITED
A.C.N: 131115789

Status: Reg stered

Reg stered In: NSW

Reg strat on Date: 15/05/2008

Rev ew Date: 15/05/2019

Name Start Date: 15/05/2008

Type: Austra an Propr etary Company
Organ sat on Number Type: Austra an Company Number
Deta s Start Date: 15/05/2008

C ass: L m ted By Shares

Subc ass: Propr etary Company

D sc os ng Entty: No

Reg stered char ty: No

Document Number: 1E4373534

Organisation Address

Status Address Type Address Start Date Doc Number
Current Reg stered Off ce BOYCE CHARTERED 15/05/2008 1E4373534
ACCOUNTANTS
36 BOMBALA STREET
COOMA NSW 2630
Current Prnc pa P ace of 'AMBYNE' 15/05/2008 1E4373534
Bus ness TINGARINGI ROAD

DELEGATE NSW 2633

Organisation Officers

Role Officer Details Address Appointment Court Doc
Date Details Number

D rector DAVID CRAIK MITCHELL 'CURRAWONG' 15/05/2008 1E4373534
Date of B rth: 28/12/1967 CURRAWONG ROAD
P ace of B rth: COOMA NSW DELEGATE NSW 2633

D rector JOHN ROBERT JEFFREYS 'DELEGATE STATION' 15/05/2008 024897561
Date of B rth: 26/04/1977 205 BONANG HIGHWAY
P ace of B rth: COOMA NSW DELEGATE NSW 2633

D rector RICHARD PETER TAYLOR 843 OLD BOMBALA ROAD 17/07/2016 029665673
Date of B rth: 29/10/1964 NIMMITABEL NSW 2631
P ace of B rth. COOMA NSW

Secretary DAVID CRAIK MITCHELL '‘CURRAWONG' 15/05/2008 1E4373534
Date of B rth: 28/12/1967 CURRAWONG ROAD
P ace of B rth: COOMA NSW DELEGATE NSW 2633

Secretary WILLIAM ARTHUR JEFFREYS 79 THE MOUNTAIN ROAD 15/05/2008 3E5008838
Date of B rth: 03/04/1979 BUNGENDORE NSW 2621

P ace of B rth: COOMA NSW
Share Structure

Share Class No.Issued Amount Paid Amount Unpaid Doc Number
ORD ORDINARY SHARES 144 $144.00 $0.00 1E4373534

Note: For each c ass of shares ssued by a propr etary company, ASIC records the deta s of the twenty members of the c ass (based on
sharehod ngs). The deta s of any other members ho d ng the same number of shares as the twent eth ranked member w a so be recorded by
ASIC on the database. Where ava ab e, h stor ca records show that a member has ceased to be ranked amongst the twenty members. Ths may,
but does not necessar y mean, that they have ceased to be a member of the company.

Shareholders


a25877
Text Box
IR 191003
Document 8d


Class No. Held Beneficially Fully Paid Shareholder Details Document Number
Held

ORD 24 Yes Yes DAVID CRAIK MITCHELL 1E4373534
'CURRAWONG'
CURRAWONG ROAD
DELEGATE NSW 2633

ORD 24 Yes Yes ANDREA MAREE MITCHELL 1E4373534
'‘CURRAWONG'
CURRAWONG ROAD
DELEGATE NSW 2633

ORD 24 Yes Yes JOHN ROBERT JEFFREYS 024897561
'DELEGATE STATION'
205 BONANG HIGHWAY
DELEGATE NSW 2633

ORD 48 No Yes TONYREID PTY LTD 7E9144973
14 NORTON STREET
RANDWICK NSW 2031
ACN: 125949537
ABN: 84125949537
GUFEE PTY LIMITED
14 DICKSON STREET
BRONTE NSW 2024
ACN: 080516294
ABN: 22080516294
FAIRROSS PTY. LTD.
FAIRFIELD
NIMMITABEL NSW 2631
ACN: 080434975
P.AAA.PTY.LTD.
BELLEVUE
NIMMITABEL NSW 2631
ACN: 080467376
C&C TAYLOR HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
Cl- JAMES RAE & CO ACCOUNTANTS
UNIT 9
26 RIDGE STREET
NORTH SYDNEY NSW 2060
ACN: 074513018
ORD 24 Yes Yes WILLIAM ARTHUR JEFFREYS 3E5008838
79 THE MOUNTAIN ROAD
BUNGENDORE NSW 2621

Documents
Form Code Description # of pages Received Processed Effective Doc Number
484 484 Change to Company Deta s 2 11/07/2017 11/07/2017 13/06/2017 3E5008838

484A1 Change Off ceho der Name or
Address 484A2 Change Member
Name or Address
484 484N Change to Company Deta s 3 13/06/2017 13/06/2017 13/06/2017 7E9144973
Changes to (Members) Share
Ho d ngs
484 484E Change to Company Deta s 4 19/08/2016 24/08/2016 24/08/2016 029665673
Appo ntment or Cessat on of A
Company Off ceho der
484 484 Change to Company Deta s 2 23/06/2010 23/06/2010 23/06/2010 7E2940736
484A1 Change Off ceho der Name or
Address 484A2 Change Member
Name or Address

902 902 Supp ementary DocumentAters 2 06/08/2008 07/08/2008 15/05/2008 024897561
1E4 373 534

201 201C App caton For Reg straton as a 4 15/05/2008 15/05/2008 15/05/2008 1E4373534
Propr etary Company A tered by 024
897 561

Contact Address for ASIC use only

Note The Address for AS C Company Communications is for AS C use only to correspond with the company AS C will forward notices such as the
company statement invoice statements and other correspondence where requested to this address
Address Start Date Doc Number
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Farming and national environment law

The Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act)

Farmers need to know about Australia’s national
environment law as some agricultural activities may need
federal government approval. This could be in addition to

state or local government approvals.

National environment law protects matters that are of
national environmental significance. Those most relevant to

farmers are:

e nationally threatened and migratory species

* nationally threatened ecological communities
* wetlands of international importance

* world and national heritage properties, and

¢ the Great Barrier Reef.

New farm activities, such as land clearing, may require
approval from the federal environment minister under

national environment law.

If you are unsure, it is best to check by calling the
Department on 1800 110 395. You should also check state

and local governments” approval requirements.

Images: Andrew Tatnell

Protected matters on your farm

National environment law only applies to matters of
national environmental significance. You can check if
there are likely to be protected matters on or near your
property by using the environment reporting tool at

wWww.envir onment.gov. au/ farmlng

Do | need federal approval for
all my farming activities?

No. You can continue routine farm activities without
approval if they began before national environment law was
introduced in July 2000. Only new farm activities that are
likely to have a significant impact on a protected matter may

need approval.

Will my activity have a
significant impact?

Whether or not the impacts of an activity are significant
depends on several factors, including how long the impact
will last and the sensitivity of a nationally protected matter.
Guidelines are available at www.environment.gov.au/epbc/
guidelines-policies.html. If you are unsure, you should

check, otherwise you may accidentally break the law.

©0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000_

B10O082.0714

environment.gov.au/farming
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4 Australian Government

e Department of the Environment and Energy

Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

OCCUPIER’'S INFORMATION SHEET

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR OCCUPIERS
WHO ARE REQUESTED TO GIVE CONSENT FOR AN AUTHORISED OFFICER UNDER THE
ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION AND BIODIVERSITY CONSERVATION ACT 1999 TO ENTER THEIR
PREMISES

VOLUNTARY | Under section 405 of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation
CONSENT Act 1999 (the Act), if you as the occupier of premises give consent, an
authorised officer may enter those premises for the purpose of exercising certain
powers under the Act.

YOUR You have the right to refuse consent for an authorised officer to enter the
RIGHTS premises.

You have the right to ask an authorised officer to produce his or her identity card
(or written evidence that the officer is a member of the police force or an officer
of Customs).

If you give consent for an authorised officer to enter the premises, you have, or a
person representing you has, the right to be present while the authorised officer
exercises his or her powers.

If you give consent for an authorised officer to the premises you may, at any
time, revoke that consent.

WHAT AN If you give your consent for an authorised officer to enter the premises, the
INSPECTOR | authorised officer may exercise a range of powers as set out in section 406 of
MAY DO the Act (extracted on page 3), which are to:

e inspect and search the premises;

e take photographs (including a video recording), and make sketches, of the
premises or of any substance or thing on the premises;

e inspect, take extracts from, and make copies of, any document that is, or that
the authorised officer suspects on reasonable grounds is, evidential material
in relation to an offence against an environmental law, in relation to a
contravention of an environmental penalty provision or in relation to both;

e inspect, and take samples of, any other evidential material in relation to an
offence against an environmental law, in relation to a contravention of an
environmental penalty provision or in relation to both;

o take measurements of, and conduct tests on, the premises or any substance
or thing on the premises;

e exercise powers of seizure conferred on the authorised officer by section
444A or 445 of the Act;

Current July 2015
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e exercise powers of possession conferred on the authorised officer by section
406AA of the Act; and

e take onto the premises any equipment or material reasonably necessary for
the purpose of exercising a power referred to in any of the other paragraphs
of this subsection.

(1) An authorised officer who boards a vehicle, vessel, aircraft or platform under section 403,

Envir on.ment or enters premises under section 405 may:
P g ote.ctlor! and (a) inspect and search the vehicle, vessel, aircraft, platform or premises, as the case
Biodiversity may be; and
Conservation (aa) take photographs (including a video recording), and make sketches, of the
Act 1999 premises or of any substance or thing on the vehicle, vessel, aircraft, platform or
premises; and
Section 406 (b) inspect, take extracts from, and make copies of, any document that is, or that the
authorised officer suspects on reasonable grounds is, evidential material in relation
Powers of to an offence against an enyi_ronme_ntal Iav'v, in relation to a contravention of an
] environmental penalty provision or in relation to both; and
(ba) in the case of an authorised officer who boards a vessel under section 403—
officers subject to section 406A, search without warrant:
(i) a person on the vessel; and
(ii) the person’s clothing;
to find out whether there is hidden on the person or in the clothing:
(iii) an eligible seizable item; or
(iv) a thing that may be evidential material in relation to an offence
against an environmental law, in relation to a contravention of an
environmental penalty provision or in relation to both; and
(c) inspect, and take samples of, any other evidential material in relation to an
offence against an environmental law, in relation to a contravention of an
environmental penalty provision or in relation to both; and
(ca) take measurements of, and conduct tests on, the vehicle, vessel, aircraft,
platform or premises or any substance or thing on the vehicle, vessel, aircraft,
platform or premises; and
(d) exercise powers of seizure conferred on the authorised officer by section 444A or
445; and
(e) take onto the vehicle, vessel, aircraft, platform or premises any equipment or
material reasonably necessary for the purpose of exercising a power referred to in
any of the other paragraphs of this subsection.
Environment (1) An authorised officer may seize a specimen if he or she has reasonable grounds to
Protection and | suspect that the specimen has been used or otherwise involved in the commission of an
Biodiversity offence against Part 13A.
Conservation Note: Part 13A deals with' international njoygment of wildlife specimens.
Act (2) If a warrant has been issued under Division 4:
: (a) if the warrant relates to premises—this section does not apply:
1999Section (i) to the executing officer, or an officer assisting, while he or she is
444A searching premises under the warrant; or
Seizure of (i) c}o anything found during the course of such a search;
- an
isnF:g:llvmezr;: a (b) if the warrant relates to a person—this section does not
A apply:
c?gtr:tvf;?/t\lon i (i) to the executing officer, or an officer assisting, while he
oT Fa

or she is searching a person, or an aircraft, vehicle or

vessel, under the warrant; or

(ii) to anything found during the course of such a search.
Note: Division 4 is about search warrants. The Division contains its own
seizure powers (see paragraphs 417(1)(c), (d) and (e) and (2)(b), (c) and (d)).
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This information guide is designed to assist land managers, owners and occupiers as well as environmental
assessment officers and consultants to identify, assess and manage the Natural Temperate Grassland of the
South Eastern Highlands ecological community; a threatened ecological community, listed as critically
endangered under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act),
Australia’s national environmental law.

This guide is a companion document to the approved Conservation Advice, which can be found on the
Australian Government’s species profile and threats (SPRAT) database at: www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/sprat/

public/publiclookupcommunities.pl.

On this webpage, click on the details link—alongside the ecological community name—to download the

documents and the map for the listed ecological community.

© Copyright Commonwealth of Australia, 2016.

Natural Temperare Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands: a nationally provected ecological community is licensed by the
Commonwealth of Australia, for use under a Creative Commons By Attribution 4.0 Australia licence with the exception of
the Coat of Arms of the Commonwealth of Australia, the logo of the agency responsible for publishing the report, content
supplied by third parties, and any images depicting people. For licence conditions see:
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/

This guide should be attributed as ‘Narural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands: a nationally protected ecological
community, Commonwealth of Australia 2016’.

The Commonwealth of Australia has made all reasonable efforts to identify content supplied by third parties using the
following format ‘© Copyright [name of third party] .

Disclaimer
The views and opinions expressed in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the
Australian Government or the Minister for the Environment and Energy.

While reasonable efforts have been made to ensure thar the contents of this publication are factually correct, the
Commonwealth does not accept responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the contents, and shall not be liable
for any loss or damage that may be occasioned directly or indirectly through the use of; or reliance on, the contents of
this publication.

Images
Front cover—Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands © Copyright David Eddy.

Back cover—Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands © Copyright Matt White.
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The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community. What is it?
Why is it threatened? What does national protection

mean for people in the region?

In summary:

Australia’s unique native grasslands have

been placed under enormous pressure since
non-Indigenous settlement. However, important
remnants persist across several regions, including
the South Eastern Highlands.

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community was
listed on 6 April 2016 as Critically Endangered
under Australia’s national environment law,

the Environment Protection and Biodiversity

Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act).

This listing updates and replaces a previous
listing, for the Natural Temperate Grassland of
the Southern Tablelands of New South Wales
and the Australian Capital Territory, which was
listed as Endangered in 2000. These revisions
are based on new data collected after the original

listing was made in 2000.

This revised listing recognises a broader area of
grasslands across the South Eastern Highlands
and immediately adjacent areas in NSW, ACT
and Victoria, and adds a ‘minimum condition
threshold’, which identifies which areas of
grassland are protected by the EPBC Act.

Low quality grasslands that do not meet this
threshold are not protected.

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community is
dominated by native tussock grasses with a rich
diversity of wildflowers and other grassland

plants and animals, with few trees or shrubs.

It provides vital habitat for at least nineteen
threatened species, such as the grassland earless
dragon, striped legless lizard, pink-tailed
worm lizard, golden sun moth, and button
wrinklewort daisy, and is a refuge for many

other locally-rare species.

These native grasslands are important for
agriculture as they provide year round forage,
and are drought tolerant, including recovering
quickly from extended drought. This makes
them useful in low input production systems,

and for fine wool production.

Native grasslands also provide other ecosystem
services such as carbon storage, improving
water infiltration, reducing soil erosion and

suppressing weeds.

The national Threatened Species Scientific
Committee classified the ecological community
as Critically Endangered as its extent has
declined by more than 90 per cent and it has a
highly fragmented and restricted distribution.
This has resulted in large reductions in the
number and size of regional populations of
many plants and animals, including local

extinctions, and loss of ecosystem function.

National listing is an important step in securing
the future of the Natural Temperate Grassland
of the South Eastern Highlands by:

— requiring consideration of the impact of

new developments on the grasslands

— encouraging priority support for
conservation and recovery efforts,
including opportunities through Australian

Government funding initiatives

— raising awareness of the ecological
community and priority actions to

combat threats.

The Conservation Advice for these native
grasslands builds on the 2006 grassland recovery
plan, outlining a range of priority research and
management actions that provide guidance

on how to protect, manage and restore this

Critically Endangered ecological community.
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* Protecting and restoring the native grasslands
will conserve ecosystem services for people
in the region, and support more resilient

agriculture production.

e As has been the case since the original
listing, routine property maintenance, land
management and other established practices
(e.g. most farming activities and managing fire
breaks) do not typically require consideration
under national environment law, particularly if
carried out in line with other national and state

laws covering native vegetation.

e Only activities that are likely to have a
significant impact on the ecological community
need to be considered under national
environment law—activities such as large
new developments, works or infrastructure.

For example, permanently clearing areas of
high-quality native vegetation for mining and
energy infrastructure, changed agricultural
production (e.g. cropping), telecommunication
cabling, roadworks or residential/

industrial subdivision.

National ecological communities

Australia’s national environment law provides

a legal framework to list, protect and manage
Matters of National Environmental Significance;
including nationally threatened species and

ecological communities.

The EPBC Act defines an ecological community

as an assemblage of native species which inhabit a
particular area in nature. In other words, ecological
communities are groups of native plants, animals

and other organisms that naturally occur together

and interact in a unique habitat. Nationally listed
ecological communities include forest, grassland,
shrubland, wetland, woodland, marine, ground spring

and cave communities.

Creamy candles Stakhousia monogyna in kangaroo grass Themeda
triandra © Copyright Department of the Environment and Energy

Grassland earless dragon Tympanocryptis pinguicolla © Copyright
Steve Wilson.

The native plants and animals in an ecological
community have different roles and relationships
that, together, contribute to a healthy functioning

natural environment.

Listed ecological communities may become extinct,
through loss of extent and/or function, unless threats
are removed or better managed. However, remnants
retain important natural values and have the potential
to provide more habitat and ecosystem services

if recovered.

Protecting wildlife communities also protects ecosystem
services such as clean air, land and water. These benefit
people and society both within and beyond the local
areas where they occur and are essential to the greater

productivity of our land and water.

National (EPBC Act) protection complements other
conservation measures and is particularly vital for
temperate grasslands as few remnants are protected

in conservation reserves.

4 / Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands: a nationally protected ecological community




What is the Natural
Temperate Grassland of the
South Eastern Highlands
ecological community?

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern
Highlands is dominated by native tussock grasses with
a diversity of wildflowers and other grassland-specialist
plants and animals. The composition of a particular
area (patch) of the ecological community is primarily
influenced by its disturbance history (e.g. clearing,
grazing and fire), but also by its size, recent rainfall

and drought conditions.

Previously, the Natural Temperate Grassland of the
Southern Tablelands of NSW and the Australian
Capital Territory ecological community was listed

in 2000. Since then, new data has shown that these
grasslands occur more broadly across the south eastern
highlands and adjacent areas. Therefore a review was
conducted to assess the broader distribution and take
account of new information, including the outcome
of work associated with the 2006 Recovery Plan. The
updated listing also introduced a minimum condition
threshold, to help determine which patches should

be considered a matter of national environmental
significance (see Are all patches protected under the
EPBC Act listing?), and which removed protection

from low-quality patches.

The ecological community can be identified by

these general features:

Landscape and soils

* The ecological community occurs at altitudes up
to around 1200 m, and as low as 250 m in some

parts of its distribution.

* It occurs on a wide range of topographic positions
and on soils derived from a variety of substrates,
including granites, basalts, sediments, colluvium

and alluvium.
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Vegetation

It is a naturally treeless or sparsely treed
community (less than 10% projective foliage cover
from woody plants), which is characterised by
native tussock grasses that are typically up to 1.0 m

in height.

There is usually a second, lower stratum of shorter
perennial and annual grasses and forbs growing
between the taller tussocks, and there may be a
third discontinuous layer of even smaller forbs
and grasses. Sedges and rushes may also occur,

particularly in seasonally wet areas.

The major dominant or co-dominant grass species
are: Themeda triandra syn. T. australis (kangaroo
grass), Poa sieberiana (snowgtass), Poa labillardierei
var. labillardierei (river tussock grass), Austrostipa
bigeniculata (kneed speargrass), Austrostipa scabra
var. falcata (slender speargrass), Bothriochloa

macra (red grass), various Rytidosperma species

syn. Austrodanthonia species (wallaby grasses), and

Lachnagrostis filiformis (blowngrass).

The dominant or co-dominant grasses occur in
association with a range of other native herbaceous

species, including many forb and grass-like species.

Wildflowers and other species that are most
common with the grasses include Acaena

ovina (sheep’s burr), Asperula spp. (woodruffs),
Chrysocephalum apiculatum (common everlasting,
yellow buttons), Convolvulus spp. (bindweed),
Euchiton spp. (cudweeds), Leptorhynchos squamatus
(scaly buttons), Lomandra spp. (mat-rushes),
Plantago varia (variable plantain) and Virzadinia

muelleri (narrow-leaf New Holland daisy).

The grasslands often intergrade with adjacent
grassy woodlands, such as the nationally listed
White Box-Yellow Box-Blakely’s Red Gum
Grassy Woodland and Derived Native Grassland

ecological community.

Billy buttons Craspedia variabilis © Copyright Chris Watson
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Why is the Natural Temperate
Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological
community important?

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern
Highlands ecological community provides habitat

for a range of native plants and animals that rely on
grasslands for their homes and food. Remnant patches
of the ecological community provide wildlife corridors
and refuges in a fragmented landscape. These grassland
patches also help improve air and water quality, and

helps prevent or reduce soil erosion and weeds.

When native vegetation is cleared, habitat which was
once continuous becomes divided into smaller separate
fragments. This makes it harder for animals to roam or
migrate and for plants to disperse. Many fragments of
the ecological community are small islands—isolated
from each other by grazing or agricultural land, or by
roads, houses and other developments. Prior to the
20* century, when conditions were right the grassland

and surrounding grassy woodlands would have on

occasions looked like a vast carpet of yellow, white,
pink and purple wildflowers with emus and kangaroos
grazing amongst them. The plains of Canberra, the
Monaro and surrounding regions once contained
some of the most extensive and diverse temperate

grassland in Australia.

While most native grassland in the Canberra region
has been lost or fragmented by improved pasture and
then urban development, pockets of native grassland
remain and provide crucial local biodiversity, natural
beauty and amenity in parks, nature reserves and other
land in and around the city. Some of these pockets
occur at Canberra airport; St Mark’s and York Park

in Barton; Jerrabomberra Grasslands and around
suburbs such as Crace, Dunlop, and Mitchell. Similar
pockets occur around towns such as Cooma and
Goulburn. Isolated populations of grassland animals
and plants may be more vulnerable to local extinction.
Therefore, connectivity between individual areas of
grassland and with other areas of native vegetation,
particularly grassy woodlands, is important. For
example, connectivity increases plant pollination rates

and the spread of plant propagules—the parts of a

Grassland conservation area in the ACT overlooking Lake Burley Griffin, St Mark’s in Barton, not far from Parliament House

© Copyright Matt White.
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Where does the Natural
Temperate Grassland of the
South Eastern Highlands
ecological community occur?

The ecological community occurs in and adjacent
to the South Eastern Highlands region, within
New South Wales, the Australian Capital Territory
and Victoria. Local Government Areas across

its distribution include (although the ecological

community may not be present in all these areas):
* The Australian Capital Territory.
e NSW: Bathurst, Bega Valley, Blayney, Cabonne,

Cowra, Eurobodalla, Goulburn Mulwarree,
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Gundagai, Hilltops, Lithgow, Oberon, Orange,
Queanbeyan-Palerang, Shoalhaven, Snowy
Monaro, Snowy Valleys, Upper Lachlan and
Yass Valley.

* Victoria: East Gippsland and Towong.

(Local government area names and boundaries as at
May 2016).

This map is available at: www.environment.gov.

au/biodiversity/threatened/communities/maps/
pubs/152-map.pdf

Note that property-specific maps available from
state agencies do not always identify EPBC-listed

ecological communities.
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Why does the ecological
community need
national protection?

In April 2016 the Australian Government Minister
for the Environment and Energy listed the Natural
Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands
ecological community, after considering the advice
of the Threatened Species Scientific Committee (the
Committee). A rigorous assessment of the scientific
evidence found that it met the eligibility criteria for
listing as critically endangered under the EPBC Act,

Australia’s national environment law.

The Committee found that:
* the ecological community had undergone a decline
of more than 90 per cent in extent

* the ecological community now occurs as highly
fragmented patches, with most less than 10 ha

in size

* it has experienced a very severe reduction
in integrity due to the combined effects of:
substantial clearing and fragmentation, nutrient
enrichment (fertilisers and livestock waste),
invasive flora and fauna, heavy grazing and

changes to natural fire regimes.

The overall aim of nationally listing the ecological
community is to prevent its decline and support
on-ground efforts to ensure its long-term survival.
The Conservation Advice for the ecological
community outlines a range of priority research and
management actions that provide guidance on how
to manage, restore and protect it. This Conservation
Advice can be found on the Department’s website:

www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/

communities/pubs/152-conservation-advice.pdf

Top left: Slender Sun Orchid 7helymitra pauciflora © Copyright Matt White; Top right: Billy button Craspedia variabilis
© Copyright Matt White; Bottom left: Blue devil Eryngium ovinum © Copyright Matt White; Bottom right: Early nancy

Wurmbea dioica © Copyright Matt White.
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Are all patches protected
under the EPBC Act listing?

No, most national definitions of ecological
communities specify condition thresholds which help
to identify patches that are too small or degraded

to be protected under the law. This allows national
protection to focus on the best and most intact
patches of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the

South Eastern Highlands ecological community.

These condition thresholds mean that small and/
or degraded patches or patches lacking high native
diversity—such as remnants where native species
have been largely replaced by weeds, or many
native pastures—are excluded from listed ecological

community and any actions that may impact them do
not need to be considered under the EPBC Act.

Condition thresholds

The Natural Temperate Grassland of the South
Eastern Highlands ecological community is only
protected under national environment law when it is

in relatively good condition. A patch should first be

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

identified as being the ecological community (using
the features listed on page 5 and covered in detail in
the Conservation Advice document). Then it may

be identified as being in relatively good condition
(Moderate quality) if it meets the condition thresholds

illustrated in the flowchart in Figure 1.

Although not part of the protected ecological
community listed under the EPBC Act, it is
recognised that patches which do not meet the
minimum condition thresholds for Moderate quality,
or higher, may still retain important natural values;
particularly if they are near patches which do meet the
minimum condition thresholds. As such, these patches
should not be excluded from recovery and other

management actions.

For further details of how to determine whether a
patch of vegetation meets the definition and condition
thresholds for the national ecological community

see the Conservation Advice at: www.environment.

gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/communities/

pubs/152-conservation-advice.pdf

Wildflowers in the Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands © Copyright Matt White.
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Figure 1: Flowchart to help identify which areas (patches) of the Natural Temperate Grassland of the
South Eastern Highlands ecological community meet the minimum condition thresholds (A and B) for

national protection

Minimum condition threshold assessment—method ‘A’
[Applies to patches dominated by particular grasses / sedges]

\/

Is the patch at least 0.1 ha in size? No

Yes

!

Is the patch characterised by at least 50% foliage cover
of the ground of:

The patch is too small to be part of the

protected ecological community

This is indicative of sites with little past
disturbance. Often sites with a high cover
of T. triandra will fall into the High to
Very High or Excellent condition threshold
1 categories, if further survey of non-grass or
' indicator species is carried out.

!

Themeda triandra (kangaroo grass)

OR |
Poa labillardierei (river tussock grass), (generally in : """""""""""""""""""
flats and drainage lines where this vegetation type =~ p========== ' Intact grasslands dominated by Poa
naturally occurs). labillardierei or Carex bichenoviana can

OR be very rare and such grasslands have very

important landscape and catchment values.
These grasslands generally have a lower

Carex bichenoviana (a native sedge) (or at least

----------- >
50 tussocks for every 100 m?). 1 forb diversity than the other grassland
| | E types, so are best assessed in this way in
' the first instance.
Yes <
The patch is part of the Proceed to Minimum condition
protected nationally listed threshold assessment—Method B,
ecological community on the next page

Please note:

* Assessments of a patch should initially be centred on the area of highest native floristic diversity.

* Consideration must be given to the timing of surveys and recent disturbance.

* The minimum patch size for consideration as part of the listed ecological community is 0.1 ha
(e.g. 50 m x 20 m), but other condition thresholds must also be met.

* The surrounding context of a patch must also be taken into account when considering factors that add to the
importance of a patch that meets the condition thresholds.

* The list of Indicator species referred to in the Condition Thresholds, can be found on the Species Profiles and
Threats (SPRAT) database, on the Department’s website®.

* A relevant expert (e.g. ecological consultant, local NRM or environment agency) may be useful to help

identify the ecological community and its condition.
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Minimum condition threshold assessment—method ‘B’
[Applies when cover of the grassland is not evidently dominated by the species highlighted under A’]

Is the patch at least 0.1 ha in size? — No | The patch is too small to be part of the
| protected ecological community
Yes

Is the cover of native plants greater than the cover of N The patch is too weedy to be part of the
— No r—»
perennial exotic plants? protected ecological community
Yes
In sampling plots of 0.04 ha (e.g. 20 m x 20 m):
Favourable sampling Other sampling times:
times' (.usually w.'hen most At least > No
species are evident): 4 non-grass® native species
At least OR
8 non-grass” nati i
Ofi-grass native species OR At least 1 indicator species®  /
OR
At least 2 indicator species® OR The patch lacks native understorey
OR A floristic value score (FVS?) diversity under this assessment
of at least 3 method, but first ensure it does
A floristic value score (FVS%) not meet the criteria under
of at least 5 method ‘A’

The patch is not part of the
Yes protected ecological community

'

The patch is part of the protected
nationally listed ecological community

Further guidance on identifying the ecological community, including higher condition categories, is in the
Conservation Advice for the ecological community on the Department’s website.

1. To be assessed in spring to early summer, and/or other time when native plant species are most evident
(e.g. significant recent rainfall that has stimulated flowering of native plants). Or if these conditions not

present, counts may be estimated from multiple surveys of the same site in different seasons or years.

2. Non-grass species include forbs/herbs (wildflowers), lilies, orchids, rushes and low shrubs. It does not include

trees and, for the purposes of these thresholds, sedges.

3. Indicator species are native plant species that are useful surrogates for conservation value of a patch, and are
typically disturbance sensitive species. The list is found on the ecological community profile on the Species
Profiles and Threats Database (SPRAT), on the Department’s website.

4. Floristic Value Score is a method of measuring the quality of a grassland site, based on Rehwinkel (2015)
(see the Conservation Advice for the full reference).
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What does the listing mean for
landholders?

Business as usual for most
routine activities

As has been the case since the original listing in
2000, it is important to note that the EPBC Act

is only triggered if a particular activity has, or will
have, a significant impact on a Matter of National
Environmental Significance—a threatened ecological

community, in this instance.

The normal activities of individual landholders,
residents and councils will typically not be affected
by a listing. Routine property maintenance, land
management and other established practices—such
as ongoing road maintenance works—are unlikely

to have a significant impact and so do not typically
require referral or other consideration under national
environment law, particularly if carried out in

line with other national and state laws covering

native vegetation.

For instance, the following actions are unlikely to

trigger national environment law:
* ongoing grazing, horticultural or
cropping activities

* maintaining existing fences, access tracks

and firebreaks
* maintaining existing farm gardens and orchards
* maintaining existing farm dams or water storages

* maintaining existing pumps and clearing
drainage lines
* replacing and maintaining sheds, yards and
other buildings
* targeted control of weeds and spraying for pests on

individual properties or roadside verges

* road maintenance, including grading on the

road edges.
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Although the above actions are unlikely to trigger the
EPBC Act, any impacts on patches of the ecological
community should still be avoided where possible.
For example, landholders should try to avoid native
vegetation clearance in the ecological community and
leave a minimum 30 m buffer zone to help protect
the ecological community from spray drift (fertiliser,
pesticide or herbicide sprayed in adjacent land) and

other damage.

It is also important to note that human settlements
and infrastructures, where an ecological community
formerly occurred, do not form part of the natural
environment and so are not considered to be part of
the protected ecological community. This also applies
to sites that have been replaced by crops and exotic
pastures, or where the ecological community exists in

a highly-degraded or unnatural state.

Whether or not an action is likely to have a significant
impact depends on the sensitivity, value and quality
of the environment which is impacted, and on the
intensity, duration, magnitude and geographic extent

of the impacts.

Echidna Zachyglossus aculeatus © Copyright Andy Heaney

16 / Natural Temperate Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands: a nationally protected ecological community



00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s

What can | do to look after the

Actions likely to have a significant
impact may trigger national
environment law

The EPBC Act is triggered if an action is likely to have
a significant impact on the ecological community. If
you consider that a proposed action is likely to have
such an impact, or you are unsure, you should contact
the Department to help you determine whether or
not a proposed action will need formal assessment
and approval under the EPBC Act. For further
information on referral, assessment and approval

processes, refer to the following website:

www.environment.gov.au/

protection/environment-assessments/

assessment-and-approval-process

Social and economic matters may also be taken
into account for individual projects that may have
a significant impact on the ecological community,
through the EPBC Act approvals process. Strict
timeframes apply to assessments to ensure decisions

are made as quickly as possible.

The key diagnostics and condition thresholds outlined
above for the ecological community exclude many
patches on properties or along roadside verges that are
considered too degraded for protection. In addition,
the EPBC Act provides exemptions for continuing
(routine) use or where legal permission has previously
been given; see previous section on ‘Business as usual

for most routine activities’.

The major activity that is likely to have a significant
impact on the ecological community is permanently
clearing large or otherwise important areas of intact or

high-quality native vegetation. Examples include:

* major mining, residential, commercial or other

industrial development
*  building new roads or widening existing roads

 converting large areas of native grassland into

improved pastures or cropping fields.

To help reduce the significance of actions, the EPBC Act

promotes the avoidance and mitigation of impacts from

the early planning stage, wherever that is possible.

ecological community?

You can protect and promote the recovery of grassland

remnants in your area. You can:

avoid further clearance and fragmentation of the
ecological community and surrounding native
vegetation, with high-quality and relatively

unmodified areas being particularly important

minimise unavoidable impacts from any
developments or other activities adjacent to

the ecological community that might result in
further degradation—for example, by applying a
minimum 30 m buffer zone around the ecological
community and avoiding hydrological and nutrient

enrichment impacts

plant local native grassland species, including native

species from local threatened ecological communities

remove non-native species from your property and
don’t plant or spread potential environmental weeds
(e.g. avoid non-native grasses and daisies; check with

your local authority); avoid fertilisers

strategically manage grazing (e.g. through fencing,
stocking density, seasonality, weed prevention) and
avoid mowing or slashing the grasslands (unless for

ecological reasons)

practice environmentally safe bushwalking—keep to
paths, don’t remove or trample on plants, keep pets

on a leash and take your rubbish home with you

where possible and where trees occur within or
at the edge of grasslands, allow dead and fallen
trees and timber to remain where it is, to provide
fauna habitat—avoid unnecessary ‘tidying up’, or

collecting firewood

report illegal or damaging behaviour
(e.g. unauthorised fires or dumping) to

appropriate authorities

support local native vegetation and wildlife
conservation (e.g. join a local Landcare or catchment
group, natural history or a ‘friends of” group, or

Conservation Volunteers)

participate in special events, information nights, and

weed eradication programs in your local area.

The Conservation Advice gives further details of priority

conservation actions for the ecological community. This can

be found on the Department’s website: www.environment.
P

gov.au/cgi-bin/sprat/public/publicshowcommunity.pl?id=152

&status=Ciritically+Endangered



Are there other nationally
protected ecological
communities within this area?

Within the South Eastern Highlands there are other
ecological communities protected under national
environmental law including;

* Upland Wetlands of the New England Tablelands

and the Monaro Plateau

*  White Box-Yellow Box-Blakely’s Red Gum Grassy
Woodland and Derived Native Grassland.

For more information regarding these ecological

communities, visit: www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/

sprat/public/publiclookupcommunities.pl

Do state or local environment
laws also apply?

Yes. However, such state and local laws
complement, rather than replace or override
national environment law. Information about
state-listed ecological communities and vegetation
management laws are available from the following

New South Wales agencies:

* ACT - Environment and Planning Directorate

www.environment.act.gov.au/cpr/review of the

nature conservation_act

e NSW - Office of Environment and Heritage

www.environment.nsw.gov.au/threatenedspecies/

www.environment.nsw.gov.au/vegetation/
e NSW — Riverina Local Land Services

riverina.lls.nsw.gov.au/
e NSW — South East Local Land Services:

southeast.lls.nsw.gov.au/

* Victoria — Department of Environment and
Primary Industries

www.depi.vic.gov.au/environment-and-wildlife/

biodiversity/native-vegetation

*  Victoria — East Gippsland Catchment
Management Authority

www.egcma.com.au/
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Where can | get
further information?

The Conservation Advice for the Natural Temperate
Grassland of the South Eastern Highlands ecological
community is the definitive source of information
on the listing of this ecological community. This

can be found on the Department’s website, along
with the additional information about the ecological

community and the EPBC Act, as listed below:

e A comprehensive Conservation Advice for the
ecological community is on the Department’s
species profile and threats (SPRAT) database, at:

www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/sprat/public/

publicshowcommunity.pl?id=152&status=Criticall

y+Endangered

e The former National Recovery Plan for Natural

Temperate Grassland of the Southern Tablelands
(NSW and ACT), at www.environment.gov.

au/resource/natural-temperate-grassland-south

ern-tablelands-nsw-and-act

e Details of the EPBC listing process at:

www.environment.gov.au/topics/ threatened-spec

ies-ecological-communities

¢ Details of the EPBC referral, assessment and

approval process at: www.environment.gov.au/

topics/environment-protection

¢ Details of Australian Government National
Landcare Programme and Natural Resource

Management organisations and initiatives are at:

WWW.Nrm.gov.au
* A separate factsheet on farming and national
environmental law at: www.environment.gov.au/

epbc/publications/factsheet-farming-and-national-

environment-law-epbc-act

* Enquiries can also be made through the
Department’s Community Information Unit,
by phone on 1800 803 772 (freecall), or email to

ciu@environment.gov.au

Button wrinklewort Rutidosis leptorhynchoides and chamomile

sunray Rhodanthe anthemoides in flower © Copyright David Eddy.
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If you need help to identify if Matters of National
Environmental Significance may be present in your
area of interest:

*  Check the protected matters search tool at:

www.environment.gov.au/epbc/pmst/

*  Check the species profile and threats (SPRAT)

database at : www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/

sprat/public/sprat.pl

*  Consult with relevant expert, such as an ecological
consultant, local NRM agency (e.g. Local Land
Services or Catchment Management Authority).
They may be useful to help identify the ecological
community and its condition, or

* Contact the Department’s Community
Information Unit, by phone on
1800 803 772 (freecall), or email to

ciu@environment.gov.au

Natural Temperate Grassland with showy copper wire daisy
Podolepis jaceoides in flower, Round Plain Cemetery © Copyright
David Eddy.

The appearance of the grasslands may differ from year to year, due to factors such as rainfall and management history. Top Hut Travelling
Stock Reserve at Dry Plains, near Adaminaby, in 1997 (left) and 1999 (right) © Copyright David Eddy.
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From: Geoff Richardson

To: s47F

Cc: Stephen Oxley; Dean Knudson; S47F

Subject: Update on the Monaro grassland EC [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Friday, 24 March 2017 4:49:59 PM

Hi S4TF

Following our meeting with Angus Taylor on Monday, we are exploring options to deal with the
concerns raised related to the Natural Temperate Grasslands of the South Eastern Highlands
Ecological Community.

Since the meeting, we have had some initial discussions with the regional Local Land Services
office. There appears to be little confusion about interpreting the refined definition, so we are
focussing our thinking on clarifying when a particular action may have a significant impact on the
listed community, and thus potentially trigger the EPBC Act. As we mentioned on Monday, the
presence of the listed EC, as with the presence of any MNES on a particular ‘development site’,
does not preclude the development progressing; it triggers a need for the proponent to consider
any significant impacts of their actions, and consider how to best address any significant impacts.

We will have further discussion with agronomists to better understand any uncertainty with
interpreting and applying the minimum condition thresholds that are part of the updated listing
(e.g. how areas with non-native species such as clover are assessed). We will of course be
cautious about speaking to any agronomist involved in the particular EPBC Act compliance case.
We are also looking further into the NSW native vegetation regulations and changes that are due
to come into effect 1 July, to clarify how non-native annual species are treated in assessments
and if there is any substantial difference with the national approach to minimum condition
thresholds. | would also note that all the details of these changes and their consequences for
individual landowners have not yet been made clear.

We plan to explore the issue further with NFF, and in particular through the Agriculture and
Environment Consultative Committee. This may result in better education about the grassland
and the EPBC Act, including a significant impact guidance document for this particular grassland.
This would be a similar approach as is being pursued in western Victoria to address interactions
between farming and black cockatoos.

We aim to provide further advice, in conjunction with ESD, on how best to clarify the significant
impact test for landowners in the Monaro as soon as possible. Significant impact guidelines are
not quick or easy to develop for species or ECs, and require considered input from ESD and legal
colleagues.

| will keep you informed of progress.

Regards Geoff
Geoff Richardson

Assistant Secretary | Protected Species and Communities Branch

Department of the Environment and Energy

S47F | sS47F

The Department acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout
Australia and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay
our respects to them and their cultures and to their elders both past and present.
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